

The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please contact the 
Village Clerk’s Office, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 


 
 


AGENDA 
VILLAGE BOARD 


Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 – 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 


August 19, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 


 
 


1. Call to Order 
 


2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 


3. Roll Call 
 


4. Public Hearings 
 


A. Consider approval of Kwik Trip Incorporation’s Application for a Class “A” Fermented 
Malt Beverage License and a “Class A” Cider Only License for Kwik Trip #296 to be 
located at 10215 120th Avenue.  
 


B. Consider approval of Final Resolution #19-27 authorizing construction of public 
improvements and levying special assessments against benefited properties for the 
construction of a 12-inch water main and appurtenances beginning approximately 
120-feet south of 91st Street and extending north approximately 730-feet along Old 
Green Bay Road in the Village of Pleasant Prairie. 


 
5. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received 


from the public on items not on the agenda; however, no discussion is allowed and no action will be taken 
under citizen comments.) 


 
6. Administrator’s Report 


 
A. Village Board Strategic Plan 


 
B. 2019 Halloween Trick or Treat date and time for Sunday, October 27, 2019 from 3:00 


p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
 


7. New Business 


A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of a Conceptual 
Plan as it relates to properties located on the east side of 47th Avenue between Main 
Street and 104th Street for the development of Keystone Condominiums. 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Agenda – August 19, 2019 
Page | 2 
 
 
 


I hereby certify that I posted a true and correct copy of this Agenda in three (3) public locations: Village Hall, Roger Prange Municipal 
Building and RecPlex.  Additionally, this Agenda was posted on the Village of Pleasant Prairie’s website at www.pleasantprairiewi.gov.  
 
Dated 16th day of August, 2019.  Jane C. Snell, Village Clerk 
 
 


B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Ordinance 
19-24, Ordinance #19-25 and Ordinance #19-26 to amend Chapter 420-26 through 
420-29, Chapter 395-97 and Chapter 420-131T(3) of the Village Zoning Ordinance. 


C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of a Right of 
Recovery and Funding Agreement between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and 
Creekside MF, LLC., for the extension of public water main on Old Green Bay Road. 


D. Consider approval of the Third Amendment to the Declaration of Restrictions of the 
Meadowland Subdivision. 


E. Consider approval of Ordinance #19-27 to amend Section 234-8 as it relates to 
enforcement for the abatement of nuisances. 


8. Consent Agenda (All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by 
one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board member so requests, in which 
event the item will be removed from the General Ordinances of Business and considered at this point on the 
agenda.) 


1) Minutes of Meeting – August 5, 2019 
2) Reappointments to various Boards/Commissions. 


 
9. Village Board Comments 


10. Adjournment 







   


MEMORANDUM 


To:        Village President and Village Board of Trustees 


From:   Jane C. Snell 


Date:    August 19, 2019 


Re:       Kwik Trip #296 – Liquor Licenses 
 


 


9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.694.1400 • Fax 262.694.6734 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 
 


Office of the Village Clerk 


On July 22, 2019, Donald P. Zietlow, President of Kwik Trip Inc., submitted an application requesting 
a Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage and “Class A” Cider Only Licenses for the proposed Kwik Trip 
#296 to be located at 10215 120th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158.  The application 
requested Lee Alan Rockwell to serve as the licensing agent for the corporation.   


All application requirements have been satisfied including Chief Smetana’s approval of the proposed 
licensing agent.  


As of this memorandum, the following municipal charges are outstanding: 


Sewer Connection Fee $12,000.00 
Municipal Court 0.00 
Utilities 97.87 
Engineering 1,900.00 
CD Development 767.50 
Fire 0.00 


 $14,765.37 
 
Kwik Trip #296 is scheduled to open the first week of September 2019, which is well within the 90 
days allowed from the time the Board approves the issuance of the licenses in accordance with 
Chapter 194 of the Municipal Code. 


If the Village Board approves this request, the following items must be received prior to the Clerk’s 
office issuing the licenses: 


1. Payment of annual license fees prorated from the date of issuance to June 30, 2020. 
2. Payment of publication costs of $54.05. 
3. Certificate of Occupancy issued by the Community Development, Inspections and Fire & 


Rescue Departments. 
4. Payment of any outstanding municipal charges associated with this site.  



































1 


 


 


RESOLUTION #19-27 


 


FINAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONSTRUCTION 


OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND LEVYING 


SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AGAINST BENEFITED PROPERTIES 


IN CONNECTION OF THE OLD GREEN BAY ROAD WATER MAIN EXTENSION 


IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE. 


 


 WHEREAS, the Village Board of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 


Wisconsin, on the 20th day of May, 2019, adopted a Preliminary Resolution #19-16 declaring its 


intention to levy special assessments pursuant to Section 66.0703, Wisconsin Statutes, upon the 


property benefited by the construction of the Old Green Bay Road Water Main Extension.  The 


project generally consists of a 12-inch water main and appurtenances beginning approximately 


120-feet south of  91st Street and extending north approximately 730 feet along Old Green Bay 


Road in the Village of Pleasant Prairie. 
       


 WHEREAS, the Village Board held a public hearing at Pleasant Prairie Village Hall, 


9915 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI at 6:00 p.m. on the 19h day of August, 2019 for the 


purpose of hearing all interested persons concerning the preliminary resolution and the report 


relating to the proposed improvements and assessments, and heard all persons who desired to 


speak at the hearing; and 


 


 WHEREAS, the Village Board has examined the report relating to the improvements 


and assessments (including the schedule of proposed assessments contained therein) and has 


considered the statements of those persons appearing at the public hearing; 


 


 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie, as follows: 


 


1. The report pertaining to the construction of the above described public improvements, 


including plans and specifications therefore, is determined to be correct and is finally 


adopted and approved. 


 


2. The improvements will be carried out in accordance with such report, and payment for 


the improvements shall be made by assessing the cost to the property benefited as 


indicated in the report. 


 


3. The assessments shown on the report, representing an exercise of the police power, have 


been determined on a reasonable basis and are hereby confirmed.  The total amount 


assessed is $34,651.48.  The amount assessed against each of the affected properties is 


listed on Schedule C. 


 


4. The assessments for all projects included in the report are hereby combined as a single 


assessment but any interested property owner may object to each assessment separately 


or all assessments jointly for any purpose. 







2 


 


 


5. Right-of-Recovery Assessment:  The Right-of-Recovery Assessments are subject to the 


Right-of-Recovery and Funding Agreement between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and 


Creekside MF, LLC, for the public water main extension in Old Green Bay Road. The 


property owners may defer payment of the right-of-recovery assessment until the 


property  connects to the municipal water system or as a pre-condition of a land division 


approval.  At the time the property owner connects to the municipal water system or the 


property is subdivided, the entire assessment shall become due and payable. After the 


right of recovery date obligation has expired per Funding Agreement between the Village 


of Pleasant Prairie and Creekside MF, LLC,  any right-of-recovery assessment still 


rightfully deferred and unpaid shall be deemed to have been paid. 


 


6. The Clerk shall publish this resolution as a Class 1 Notice and mail a copy of this 


resolution and a statement of the final assessment against the benefited property to every 


interested person whose post office address is known or can with reasonable diligence be 


ascertained, including each property owner whose name appears on the assessment roll. 


 


 Passed and adopted this 19th day of August, 2019. 


 


  


                              VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


 


                              ____________________________________ 


                              John P. Steinbrink, Village President 


Attest: 


 


 


_________________________________ 


Jane C. Snell, Village Clerk 


 


Date Adopted:   


 


Published:   







1 


 


Consider the approval of a Conceptual Plan for the request Joe Bukovich of Point Real 


Estate on behalf of the Sagewood 47 LLC owner of the properties located on the east side of 


47th Avenue between Main Street and 104th Street (STH 165) to develop the remainder of 


the Sagewood Condominium land with 18-2 unit condominium buildings to be known as 


Keystone Condominiums. 


 


Recommendation: On August 12, 2019 the Plan Commission held a public hearing and 


recommended that the Village Board approve the Conceptual Plan subject to the comments 


and conditions of the August 19, 2019 Village Staff Report. 


 







2 


 


VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF AUGUST 19, 2019 


Consider the approval of a Conceptual Plan for the request Joe Bukovich of Point Real 


Estate on behalf of the Sagewood 47 LLC owner of the properties located on the east side of 


47th Avenue between Main Street and 104th Street (STH 165) to develop the remainder of 


the Sagewood Condominium land with 18-2 unit condominium buildings to be known as 


Keystone Condominiums. 


 


On March 10, 2003, the Village Board approved the Preliminary Plat for the proposed 


development of this property for 17 4-unit condominium buildings (68 total units) to be 


known at Village Green Heights Townhomes South.  The Preliminary Plat was consistent 


with the Village Green Neighborhood Plan and the Village Green Heights Conceptual Plan as 


conditionally approved by the Village Board in 2001.   The Village Green Heights Subdivision 


and Village Green Heights Addition #1 Subdivisions were approved in 2004 and 2006, 


respectively, and most of the single family lots have been developed.   


On October 3, 2005, the Village Board approved the Final Condominium Plat for Sagewood 


Condominiums at Village Green that included 9-4 unit condominium buildings and an 


expansion area for 7-4 unit condominium buildings.  To date only 2 of the 9-4 unit buildings 


were constructed within the first Phase of the Sagewood Condominiums before the 


downturn in the residential market in 2008.  


In 2016 the vacant lands (unfinished Sagewood Condominium and the expansion area were 


purchased by the new developer and he is proposing to develop this area with 18-2 unit 


condominium units (36 units) to be known as Keystone Condominiums.  [Note: 103rd Court 


as shown on the plans was renamed to Sagewood Circle in 2007 by the Village Board (Res. 


#07-24); therefore, all of the plans shall be revised to show the correct street name.  Any 


reference to 103rd Court in the comments is referring to Sagewood Circle.] 


The existing 8 unit owners within the Sagewood Condominiums have agreed to vacate the 


remainder of the plat and reorganize as a 2-4 unit Condominium Association pursuant to the 


Agreement to sever and Replat Sagewood.  All property removal instruments and easement 


vacation documents will need to be prepared for Village staff review and Village Board 


approval (to be considered at the same time as the Final Plat for the Keystone 


Condominiums).   In addition, the Sagewood Condominium Planned Unit Development will 


need to be amended to reflect the Sagewood Condominium area that will remain (to be 


considered at the same time as the Final Plat for the Keystone Condominiums).   


The Keystone Condominium development will include 18-2 unit ranch style units that are 


proposed to be 1,589 square feet with 2 bedrooms, 2 bathrooms, 2 car attached garages, 


full basement, sun room with a rear patio/deck.   It is anticipated that construction on the 


required public improvements will commence in spring of 2020 and that all of the units will 


be completed within 2 to 3 years.  In addition, the Developer has submitted draft 


Declaration of Condominium along with conceptual elevations and floor plans for the 


proposed condominium buildings.   


Wetlands:  On May 22, 2018, Dave Meyer with Wetland & Waterway Consulting, a WI DNR 


assured biologist completed a wetland delineation on the north expansion areas and found 


two areas to be wetlands.  Wetland B is 1,670 square feet and has been determined by the 


WI DNR to be artificial (per letter dated September 6, 2018) and the ACOE is not taking 


jurisdiction (per letter dated September 25, 2018); therefore the small wetland area will be 


removed.  Wetland A is 32,716 square feet and will remain.   


On September 22, 2018, Dave Meyer with Wetland & Waterway Consulting, a WI DNR 


assured biologist completed a wetland delineation on remaining Sagewood Condominium 







3 


 


property and found three areas to be wetlands.  Wetland A is 1,471 square feet and is a 


man-made drainage way to allow water to flow into the existing on-site storm water basin, 


which has been noted as Wetland B.  Wetland C is a small wetland contiguous with Wetland 


A on the northern parcel.  It is recommended that the developer seek WI DNR wetland 


determination of artificial wetlands and a non-jurisdictional determination from the ACOE for 


both Wetlands A and B so that the drainage improvements can continue to be maintained as 


needed. 


Comprehensive Plan Compliance and Density:  The proposed development is consistent 


with the Village’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan, including the Village Green Neighborhood 


Plan.  This development has a net density of 2.72 units per net acre (note: net acres is 


calculated by excluding the public roadways and the wetlands (13.98 acres minus 0.76 ac of 


wetlands (to remain) =13.22 net residential acres).   


At such time that the Final Condominium Plat, required Certified Survey Map and Zoning 


Text and Map Amendment applications as noted below are submitted, an application to 


amend the Village 2035 Comprehensive Land Use Map shall be submitted to remove the 


Urban Reserve land use designation and to correct the map to reflect the field delineated 


wetlands to ensure that the zoning map and the land use map are consistent. 


Zoning:   The properties have multiple zoning designations, portions of the property are 


zoned R-9 (PUD) Multi-family Residential District with a Planned Unit Development Overlay 


District (Sagewood Condominium area), R-10 (UHO), Multi-family Residential District with 


the Urban Landholding Overlay District, C-1, Lowland Resources Conservancy District and C-


2, Upland Resource Conservancy District.  At the same time that the Final Condominium Plat 


is considered, the staff will recommend that the field delineated wetlands excepting any 


wetlands that obtain an exempt and non-jurisdictional determination from the WI DNR and 


ACOE shall be rezoned into the C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District, the woodland 


areas being preserved shall be rezoned into the C-2, Upland Resource Conservancy District 


and the remaining area in the Keystone Condominium shall be rezoned into the R-8 (PUD), 


Urban-Two Family Residential District with a Planned Unit Development Overlay District.   


The R-8 District allows for no more than 2 units per building and developing these 


properties with a PUD Overlay will allow for a modification of a few of the Village Zoning 


Ordinance requirements provided there is a defined benefit to the community. The PUD will 


allow for more than one (1) building per property and slightly reduced setbacks, provided 


that the multi-unit buildings are condominiums, all units have individual exterior entries, 


exterior materials are maintenance free and include increased elements of natural stone or 


brick materials, increased landscape screening, improved quality of architectural standards 


and installing sidewalks within 47th Avenue and STH 165.  


The Village staff will begin preparing a detailed PUD Ordinance for review by the Developer 


and the Village Plan Commission and Village Board when the Final Plat is proposed.  In 


addition, the Sagewood Condominium PUD will need to be amended to reflect the reduced 


development area.   The required public hearing for the PUD Ordinances will be held at the 


same time as the Village Plan Commission and Village Board consider the Final 


Condominium Plat.   


Municipal Improvements:  Municipal sanitary sewer and water shall be provided to 


service all of the condominium units within this development.  The storm water retention 


basin facility for this development has already been constructed and is located in the 


southeastern portion of the development.  This pond will be shared with the Sagewood 


Condominium development.  All required access and maintenance easements and restrictive 


covenant restrictions shall be shown on the new CSM and Final Plat. 







4 


 


The developer will be installing additional storm sewers and drainage system improvements 


to serve the development.   As discussed above, the developer shall request a wetland 


exemption from the DNR and non-jurisdictional determination from the ACOE for this 


retention facility and the existing drainage ditch leading to the pond that was constructed as 


part of the initial Sagewood development.  This would allow for the retention facility to be 


maintained so it can continue to function as a retention facility as it was originally designed. 


Sagewood Circle (originally platted as 103rd Court) is proposed to be dedicated to the Village 


as a public street and constructed to public roadway standards modified slightly to 


accommodate existing improvements already installed (see specific comments in the 


comments from the Village Engineer).  The new public roadways shall be constructed 


pursuant to the Village specifications as noted in Chapter 405 of the Municipal Code. 


Public sidewalks shall be installed by the developer along 47th Avenue (east side only) to 


connect to the existing sidewalk on Main Street to the north.  In addition, funds shall be 


provided to the Village for the future sidewalk south of Sagewood Circle adjacent to 47th 


Avenue and adjacent to STH 165. 


Transportation Improvement Fee:  Pursuant to the attached Memorandum of 


Understanding executed in 2004 (specifically Sections 4.03 and 4.04) regarding 


contributions for STH 165 Corridor Improvements, the developer of these properties are 


responsible for payment of $40,000 for the southern area (according to Village records 


$36,000 was paid to date by previous developer of Sagewood Condominium) and is 


responsible for payment of $28,000 for the northern area at the time of final condominium 


plat.  Therefore a total of $32,000 is still owned pursuant to said MOU for both these land 


areas.  It is recommended that about 50% or $16,016 be paid to the Village prior to 


recording the plat and $444 per unit or $888 per building be paid at the time of each 


building permit is issued. 


Construction Site Access: The construction access to the development area for installing 


the roadway and utility infrastructure and building the condo units shall be from Highway 


165 going north on 47th Avenue into the development. 


Platting and Certified Survey Map:   In addition to the required Preliminary and Final 


Condominium Plat, a Certified Survey Map (CSM) shall be required to be approved to 


dedicate the  public roadways, required easements and to set forth additional Dedication 


and Easement Provisions and Restrictive Covenants language and to remove and vacate 


documents for a portion of the Sagewood Condominium development.  As part of the Final 


Condominium Plat and CSM approval, the developer shall execute the Development 


Agreement, provide all Exhibits and provide a Letter of Credit as financial security to the 


Village as a guarantee for the installation, inspection and warranty of the public 


improvements. 


The Plan Commission recommends approval of the Conceptual Plan subject to the 


above comments and the following conditions: 


1. The Conceptual Plan approval shall be valid for a period of one (1) year.  


Prior to the expiration of the Conceptual Plan, the Preliminary Condominium 


Plat, which satisfies the conditions of the Conceptual Plan approval shall be 


submitted and considered by the Village Plan Commission and Village Board.   


2. Provide a listing and location of other developments completed by the Developer for 


the Village staff to tour. 


3. Prior to consideration of the Final Condominium Plat the wetland exemption and no 


jurisdiction determination shall be obtained by the Developer and submitted to the 


Village.  The Final Condominium Plat shall not show any exempt wetland area. 







5 


 


4. The following comments shall be addressed and included with the 


Preliminary Condominium Plat submittal: 


a. See attached comments dated July 18, 2019 from the Village Engineer.  


[Note: 103rd Court as shown on the plans was renamed to Sagewood Circle in 


2007 by the Village Board (Res. #07-24); therefore, all of the plans shall be 


revised to show the correct street name.  Any reference to 103rd Court in the 


comments is referring to Sagewood Circle.] 


b. Correct the street name of 103rd Court to Sagewood Circle on all of the plans. 


c. The existing monument sign for Sagewood Condominiums shall be relocated 


onto land that will be part of that development.   Show the new location of 


the sign and a drawing of the new sign.  Show the location of the sign for 


Keystone Condominium on the plans.  These signs shall meet the 


requirements of Section 420-76 Z of the Village Zoning Ordinance. 


d. 101st Court shall be renamed to 100th Place, the northern most bump out will 


remain 47th Avenue.  As noted above 103rd Court has been renamed to 


Sagewood Circle.  Correct all plans. 


e. The driveways at the roads between Lots 6 and 7 and Lots 8 and 9 are very 


tight- they cannot cross one another in the right-of-way. 


f. The water lateral b-boxes shall be located in grassy terrace areas not in the 


driveways. 


g. Verify that all units are setback a minimum of 20 feet from the back of curb 


to allow for a car to be parked in the driveway and not overhang in the Village 


right-of-way.  Minimum setback of 30 feet is required for all buildings 


(including decks and patios) to 47th Avenue and Main Street and a minimum 


of 50 feet to STH 165.  All units shall be a minimum of 20 feet apart 


(including decks and patios).  Show all setbacks on the plat and engineering 


plans. 


h. Verify that all buildings are setback a minimum of 25 feet from the field 


delineated wetlands.  Show setback to wetlands that will remain on the plat 


and engineering plans. 


i. Remove internal private walkways through the development since public 


sidewalks will be required on the adjacent roadways (see also the Engineering 


comments). 


j. There shall be no direct driveway access to/from any of the units to 47th 


Avenue or Main Street. Note access restriction on the plans. 


k. Verification of additional right-of-way is required to be dedicated adjacent to 


STH 165. 


l. The following comments relate to the building plans: 


i. Four (4) sided elevations shall be provided for the Village’s evaluation 


of the building materials.  


ii. More cultured stone should be added to the front/street sides of the 


buildings.  There is too much siding on the units. 


iii. There should be no blank walls, all elevation sides shall have windows. 


iv. What type of material is the siding? LP Smart Siding? Vinyl siding will 


not be supported. 







6 


 


v. Downspouts shall be extended to grade, no black plastic extensions 


shall be visible above grade.  


vi. Provide a modern detail on the exterior garage door coach lights. Is 


there a detail of the light adjacent to the front door? 


vii. Remove the fences shown in the colored elevation illustrations – as no 


six (6) foot high barrier fences the entire length of the buildings are 


needed or will be supported in the development. 


viii. Provide color sample boards showing the various color materials for 


the units. 


ix. Modify the color pallet for the units – there are so many tan houses in 


the nearby neighborhood – consider a variety of colors other than tan. 


Provide a drawing and chart indicating which building elevation and 


color will be constructed. 


x. Attractive address plates shall be installed instead of stickup numbers.  


Provide detail on the plans. 


xi. Are yard lights being proposed? 


m. The following comments relate to the Landscaping Plan: 


i. The Landscaping Plan shall utilize the grading plan as its base map. 


ii. The Landscaping Plan shall show all easements to verify that there are 


no conflicts. 


iii. Show all public street trees in 47th Avenue. 


iv. The Landscape Plan shall indicate the species, location and both the 


planting and mature size of each particular type of tree/shrub. 


v. Provide a Landscape Plan for the planting of materials within the 50’ 


wide dedicated landscape easement area along STH 165 –this area is 


not being properly mowed and shall reflect a landscaped and turf 


mowed condition. 


vi. No more than 4 of the same type of street tree shall be planted in a 


row.  Note there are 10 of the same tree at the entrance of 101st Court 


– modify the plan. 


vii. Provide details on the sizing of the foundation and other planted 


materials.  


viii. The Landscape Plan (as a community benefit) shall provide a 


significantly greater amount of trees, bushes, and other plantings and 


of good size along the west property line adjacent to 47th Avenue 


especially where patios about 47th Avenue. 


ix. Provide details on how the landscaping or corner fence details will be 


installed to create greater privacy between the units, 


x. Identify the common mailbox locations within the development and 


whether they will be landscaped. 


xi. Show the monument sign and associated landscaping on the 


Landscaping Plan. 







7 


 


xii. Minimum sizes of landscaping at planting shall be 18-24 inches for 


shrubs, trees shall be a minimum of 2 ½” caliper and minimum of 6 


feet in height. Ornamental grasses and perennials shall be used as 


accent materials not the primary landscape materials. 


xiii. Provide planting details—all landscaping and trees to be planted in 


mulched beds with trees staked. What is the material in the northern 


island adjacent to the 47th Avenue – mulch? 


xiv. All driveways (either asphalt or concrete) shall be hard surfaced prior 


to verbal occupancy.  No occupancy on gravel driveways.  Note on the 


plans. 


xv. Buried underground sprinklers shall provide irrigation to the units. 


Show on the plans. 


n. Street lights shall be installed at each intersection with 47th Avenue and at 


the inside curves of each street (See Engineering comments). The public 


street light WE Energies facility maintenance and energy charges shall be 


billed by the Village to the Condominium Association (after receiving the We 


Energies billing) on a regular basis for payment.  The Development shall be 


placed within a Village Street Lighting District. 


o. All Utility, Storm Water, Retention Basin, Vision Triangle, Signage, 


Landscaping and other required Easements as dedicated on the CSM shall be 


shown on the Preliminary and Final Plat, Engineering Plans and Landscaping 


Plans. Dedication and Easement Provisions and Restrictive Covenant 


Language as prepared by the Village shall be included on the CSM for all of 


these Easements and the Dedicated Public Streets and any other easements 


yet to be defined.  This language shall also be included in the Declaration of 


Condominium and the Final Plat.   


p. The exact location and size of Utility Easements shall be verified with We 


Energies prior to Final Condominium Plat consideration.  Dedication and 


Easement Provisions and Restrictive Covenants Language as prepared by the 


Village shall be included on the CSM for these Easements.  


q. See attached changes/corrections/discussion items related to the Declaration 


of Condominium. 


5. Upon approval of the Conceptual Plan the following shall be submitted to 


the Village for staff review prior to the Village accepting the Preliminary Plat 


application required documents and application fee. 


a. A draft copy of the Preliminary Plat (2 full size plans and a pdf). 


b. A draft copy of the Preliminary Engineering Plans (2 full size and a pdf) 


c. Provide a list of PUD dimensional variations being requested. 


d. Provide a list and illustration of easements to be vacated. 


6. Upon staff review of the draft Preliminary Condominium Plat and revised Declarations 


the following shall be submitted: 


a. Completed Preliminary Plat Application, application materials (see application) 


and application fee 







8 


 


b. Draft Certified Survey Map for Dedication of right-of-way and new easements 


(Note:  Dedication and Easement provisions will be prepared by the Village 


staff). 


c. Draft removal instrument and easement vacation documents (with exhibit 


showing location of easements to be vacated). 


d. Building plans with detailed four sided color elevations of all building sides. 


e. Color sample board and listing of color schemes for the development. 


f. Draft of the Association budget for common area maintenance and expenses. 


7. The Preliminary Condominium Plat shall only be valid for two (2) years from the 


Village Board’s conditional approval, during which all conditions must be satisfied and 


the Final Condominium Plat and Certified Survey Map shall be submitted.  If the 


property is not final platted within the two (2) years of the Village Board's approval, 


the Village shall require that the plat be resubmitted for a new Preliminary 


Condominium Plat approval along with the appropriate filing fees. 


8. Upon approval of the Preliminary Condominium Plat and the Final 


Engineering related plans discussed above the following documents shall be 


submitted for Final approval.  


a. Final Condominium Plat, all required documents noted in the application and 


application fee. 


b. Certified Survey Map application and related application fee. 


c. Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application and related fee for the required 


amendments to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan Map. 


d. Zoning Map and Zoning Text Applications and related fee for Keystone 


Condominiums 


e. Zoning Text Amendment Application and related fee for amending the 


Sagewood Condominium Planned Unit Development Ordinance. 


9. Upon Village approval of the Engineering Plans, Profiles and Specifications, the 


Developer shall submit two (2) copies of the final Village approved plans and 


specifications so that the Village can request approval from the Kenosha Water Utility 


(KWU).   


10. Upon written utility plan approval from the KWU, the Developer shall obtain written 


approval from the WI DNR.   


11. The Village Public Work’s Department will prepare a cost estimate to be included in 


the Developer’s Letter of Credit for the inspection and contract administration of the 


required public improvements.   


12. Upon Village approval of the Final Engineering Plans and Specifications and 


Landscaping Plan the following shall be submitted to the Village for staff review 


so that the Development Agreement and the recordable Memorandum of 


Development Agreement can be finalized prior to Village Board consideration (all 


documents shall also be submitted as a pdf): 


a. Ownership verification documents. 


b. Removal and Easement vacation documents. 


c. Copies of WI DNR and ACOE permits/non-jurisdictional determinations to fill 


the artificial wetlands on the southern property. 







9 


 


d. A copy of the public sanitary sewer and water approval letters from the 


Kenosha Water Utility, WI DNR, and SEWRPC. 


e. A copy of all of the signed contracts, certificates of insurance, and 


performance and payment bonds.  The contracts shall have the 


Developer’s name as shown on the title of the property.  The 


certificates of insurance shall also list the Village of Pleasant Prairie as an 


insured party.  All contractors preforming public improvement are required to 


be pre-qualified by the Village. 


f. Five (5) paper copies of the Final Engineering Plans, Profiles and 


Specifications.   


g. Five (5) paper copies of the Public Street Tree/Landscaping Plan. 


h. Five (5) paper copies of the private on-site Landscaping Plan. 


i. The Original Final Condominium Plat and five (5) paper copies.   


j. A copy of the Street Lighting Plan, including the We Energies electrical 


distribution system plan. 


k. Recorded Articles of Incorporation for the Condominium Association. 


l. Final Declaration of Condominium. 


m. Final Condominium Association By-Laws. 


n. Erosion Control Permit application, plans and related fee including the 


required Street Sweeping Cash Deposit. 


o. Village work in the Right-of-Way application, plans and related fee. 


p. Copies of any required permit from the WI DOT for any work that is being 


done within STH 165, if applicable. 


q. A Policy of Title Commitment equal to the cost of public improvements.  The 


title policy shall indicate that the right-of-way is being dedicated free and 


clear of any encumbrance liens or judgments. 


r. A “draft” replacement or supplemental LOC shall be provided to the Village for 


staff review.  [NOTE:  A one year minimum Irrevocable Letter of Credit (LOC) 


to the Village, in the amount of 115% of the total cost of public related 


improvements, including street trees, street signs (if applicable), sidewalks, 


Public Works field staking, inspections and construction related services 


(including sanitary sewer and storm sewer cleaning and televising), shall be 


submitted to the Village.  The Itemized Cost Breakdown Exhibit will be 


prepared by the Village staff to determine the amount of the Letter of Credit 


and the cash payments. IMPORTANT:  A draft replacement or supplemental 


Letter of Credit equal to the cost breakdown analysis (need to verify proper 


format and dollar amount of Letter of Credit prior submitting the Original 


Letter of Credit.  The cash payments and the “Final” LOC shall be provided 


prior to the Village at the closing.] 


s. Verification that all taxes and outstanding special assessments have been 


paid.  Any outstanding taxes, special assessments or invoices shall be paid 


prior to the Village executing and the developer recording the Certified Survey 


Map, Final Condominium Plat and Memorandum of Development Agreement. 







10 


 


13. If any of the building units are proposed to be used as a model or marketing office, a 


Conditional Use Permit application will be required to be submitted for consideration 


by the Village Plan Commission.  


14. Upon Village Board’s approval of the Final Condominium Plat and within seven (7) 


days of said approval the Village will host a closing to have the Plat and all of the 


Development Agreement documents signed.  The Developer shall be responsible for 


recording all required documents at the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office and 


provide proof of recording to the Village within 72 hours of closing with the Village.   


15. Following the closing, the Developer’s engineer shall conduct a pre-construction 


meeting at the Village Hall with all of the contractors, utilities and Village on-site 


inspectors (meeting is required prior to public improvement field work commencing).  


Contact Jean Werbie-Harris to coordinate the pre-con meeting. 


16. This development shall be in compliance with the Village Land Division and 


Development Control Ordinance, Village Design Standards and Construction 


Specifications Ordinance, Village Municipal and Zoning Codes, Village Construction 


Site Maintenance and Erosion Control Ordinance and the State of Wisconsin Statutes. 


17. All Village fees incurred by the Village Community Development, Engineering and 


Public Works Department and/or expert legal assistant required by the Village 


throughout the development process will be billed directly to the Developer.  Such 


fees shall be paid in a timely manner.  Any conflicts between the Village Design 


Standards and Construction Specifications Ordinance and the Land Division and 


Development Control Ordinance, compliance with the Village Design Standards and 


Construction Specifications shall control. 


18. Impact fees are due at the time building permits are issued.  Currently, these fees 


are $1,490 per housing unit.   


19. All public and private improvements shall be completed, inspected, and Village 


approved including having sanitary sewer and storm sewer televised, water sampled 


with safe samples, roadways completed, electric and gas utilities installed, signage 


installed and as-built utility and grading plans submitted prior to the issuance of any 


building permits in accordance with the Development Agreement on file with the 


Village.  


20. The Village Public Works Department will collect garbage and recycling from the units 


– billing is monthly. 


DEV1907-001 































   


MEMORANDUM 


To:        Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner, Community Development 


From:   Matthew J. Fineour, P.E.  


Date:    July 18, 2019 


Re:        Keystone Condominiums 


              DEV1907-001 


 


 


9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.948.8951 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 


 


Department of Engineering 


 
Peggy, 
 
The Engineering Department has reviewed the concept plans for the above referenced project.  Based on our review, 
we have the following comments listed below and as noted on the attached plan mark- up sheets.  Refer to both this 
memo and the plan mark-up sheets for all engineering comments.  This review is cursory based on the conceptual 
information provided.  Additional comments will be provided as the plans are refined and detailed plans are submitted. 
 
See comments on attached mark-up plan sheets.   


 
1. Only plan sheets with comments are included. 


 
2. Comments that apply to multiple locations are not repeated for every occurrence 


 
Concept Plan 
   


3. The public roadways for 101st Court and the unnamed north road shall conform to the Village standard minor 
street section of 33-feet back of curb width with composite pavement.  
 


4.  A public sidewalk shall be provided along 47th Avenue from the south side of 103rd Court extending north to 
the existing sidewalk at Main Street.  
 


5. 103rd Court is proposed as a public roadway.  This roadway may remain as a 37-foot back of curb width but 
the public road shall meet the composite roadway pavement section for the entire circle.  Any existing 
pavement shall be removed and the entire roadway converted to the new pavement section. 
 


6. The Developer shall contribute the cost for the future sidewalk along 47th Avenue (south of 103rd Court) and 
along STH 165. 
 


Overall Grading  
 


7. No conceptual grading plans were provided.  Preliminary grading plans shall be provided for review. 
 
Sewer / Water / Storm Utilities 
 


8. The original development project was never completed and the existing utilities were never final accepted by 
the Village.  The condition of the existing utilities within the development must be reviewed by the Public Works 
Department to determine if any repairs or deficiencies will need to be completed.  The Developer shall pay 
the costs of the televising and inspections along with completing any repairs or deficiencies. 
 


9. No conceptual utility layout plans were provided.  Preliminary utility plans shall be provided for review with the 
following concept plans at a minimum: 
 







 


9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.948.8951 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 


 


a. Clearly show existing vs. proposed site utilities. 
 
b. Show proposed relocations and alignment adjustments. 


 
c. Any unused existing service laterals (sewer, water, and storm) shall be abandoned / plugged at the 


mains.  These abandonments shall be identified on the plan. 
 
d. Proposed lateral locations and configurations. (sanitary, water, and sump laterals) 


  
10. The Village Water Utility must be able to valve off each customers lateral separately so as to not affect service 


to another independent customer.  The Village has allowed a split lateral configuration to minimize laterals.  
Example recent project configurations are attached for reference.  The preliminary layout will need to be 
reviewed for concurrence prior to final design and lateral split details specific to the project provided. 


 
11. Plan and profile sheets will need to be provided for any proposed public sanitary sewer and water main 


extensions.  Applicable approvals from Kenosha Water Utility and WDNR will need to be obtained after Village 
approval of the plans. 
 


12. All existing fire hydrants within the development shall be field modified to provide a Storz pumper nozzle. 
 
Storm Water Management 
 


13. Pond ownership, maintenance responsibilities, and party cost share obligations will need to be addressed and 
clarified for both Pond 1 and Pond 2. 
 


14. Ponds are required to have an aerator or fountain installed. 
 


15. The condition and sediment accumulation depth of Pond 2 shall be evaluated by the design engineer and 
pond work (cleaning, sediment removal, etc.) included in the plans.    


 
Other / Miscellaneous 


 
16. Development improvements shall meet design and construction standards set forth in Chapter 405 of the 


Village Ordinance.  Chapter 405 – Design Standards and Construction Specification can be obtained on the 
Village website, under the engineering department page. 


 
17. Upon approval of the conceptual plan, detailed civil improvement plans will need to be submitted for review 


including: 
 


a. Grading and erosion control plans. 
b. Site utility plans including modifications and additional improvements. 
c. Roadway improvement plans. 
d. Landscape and street tree plans. 
e. Project construction and specification manual for all the public improvements. 
f. We-Energies plans for existing electric and gas infrastructure modifications and street lighting. 


 
The engineering plans have been reviewed for conformance with generally accepted engineering practices and Village 
policies.  Although the data has been reviewed, the design engineer is responsible for the thoroughness and accuracy 
of plans and supplemental data and for their compliance with all state and local codes, ordinances, and procedures.  
Modifications to the plans, etc. may be required should errors or changed conditions be found at a future date and 
detailed engineering plans are prepared and reviewed. 
 
Attachments   
 
*** 







W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


(100' PUBLIC R.O.W.)


4
7
T


H
 
A


V
E


N
U


E


OUTLOT 2


C.S.M. NO. 2682


PARCEL 1


C.S.M. NO. 2311


PARCEL 1


C.S.M. NO. 2682


50' HIGHWAY SETBACK LINE


NO ACCESS


OUTLOT 4


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


LOT 211


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 12


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


NW CORNER, SE 1/4


NE CORNER, SW 1/4


SEC. 23, T1N, R22E


(FOUND CONC. MON. W/ BRASS CAP)


104TH STREET


STATE TRUNK HIGHWAY "165"


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 W


A
L
K


CONCRETE


DRIVE


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 C
U


R
B


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 C
U


R
B


CO
NCRETE C


URB


CO
NCRETE W


ALK


C


O


N


C


.
 
C


U


R


B


WETLANDS


DELINEATED BY


WETLAND &


WATERWAY


CONSULTING, LLC.


MAY 23, 2018


EDGE OF WATER


EL.=697.8


06/20/18


EDGE OF WATER


EL.=706.4


06/20/18


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


EDGE OF WATER


EL.=699.1


06/20/18


GRAVEL


 
A


S


P


H


A


L


T


 
P


A


V


E


M


E


N


T


 A
S


P
H


A
L
T


 P
A


V
E


M
E


N
T


 A
SPHALT P


AVEM
ENT


MAIN STREET


15' DEDICATED


PUBLIC STORM


WATER,


DRAINAGE,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


DEDICATED


WOODLAND


PROTECTION AND


PRESERVATION,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


DEDICATED PUBLIC


SANITARY SEWER


MAIN, PUBLIC STORM


SEWER, PUBLIC


WATER MAIN &


PRIVATE STREET,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


DEDICATED WOODLAND


PROTECTION AND


PRESERVATION, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


DEDICATED PUBLIC


SANITARY SEWER


MAIN, PUBLIC


STORM SEWER,


PUBLIC WATER MAIN


& PRIVATE STREET,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


DEDICATED STORM


WATER, DRAINAGE,


RETENTION BASIN,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


DEDICATED


UTILITY, ACCESS


AND MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


POND 2


POND 1


POND


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 C
U


R
B


 M
E


D
IA


N


37.1'


7


1


4


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


1


7


1


0


7


0


9


7


0


8


7


0


7


7


0


5


7


0


4


7


0


3


7


0


2


7
0
1


7


0


0


700


7


0


1


7


0


2


7


0


3


7


0


4


7


0


5


7


0


7


7


0


8


7


0


8


7


1


6


7


1


5


7


1


4


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


1


7


1


0


7


0


8


7


0


6


7


0


8


7


0


7


7


0


6


707


7


0


5


7
0
6


7


0


8


7


1


0


7


1


2


7


1


3


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


3


7


1


4


7


1


5


7


1


6


7


1


7
7


1


8


7


1


9


7


1


6


7


1


5


7


1


4


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


0


7


0


5


7


0


4


7


1


3


7


1


4


7


1


5
7


1


7


718


7
1
9


720


7


2


2


6
9
5


700


705


710


6


9


3


6
9
2


6
9
1


6
9
1


7
0
0


6
9
5


7
0
0


7
0
5


7
1
0


7
1
5


7


1


4


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


1


6


9


4


7


1


0


7


0


9


7
0
5


7
0
4


6


9


1


7


1


5


7


1


0


715


7


1


0


7


1


4


7


1


6


7


1


7


7


1


5


7


1


3


7


1


1


7


1


0


7


1


0


7


0


7


7


0


9


7


1


0


7


0


7


7


0


6


7


0


5


7


0


4


7


0


5


7


0


0


7


0


0


7


0


1


7


0


2


7


0


4


7


0


6


7


0


9


7


1


0


7


1


1


7


1


2


7


1


3


7
1
4


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


1


7
1
2


7


1


1


7


1


0


7


0


9


7


0


7


7


0


6


7


0


8


7


0


6


7


0


4


7


0


4


7


0


5


7


0


6


7


0


5


7


0


5


7


0


5


7


0


0


700


705


7
0
5


DEDICATED


WETLAND


PROTECTION,


PRESERVATION,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


WETLANDS DELINEATED BY


WETLAND & WATERWAY


CONSULTING, LLC.


MAY 23, 2018


15' X 15' VISION


CORNER


EASEMENT (TYP.)


15' X 15' VISION


CORNER


EASEMENT (TYP.)


ZONING: PR-1


LAND USE: PARK, RECREATION


AND OTHER OPEN SPACE


LANDS / WATER


VILLAGE GREEN


CONDOMINIUM


ZONING: R-8 (UHO)


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL /


URBAN RESERVE AREA


VILLAGE GREEN


CONDOMINIUM


ZONING: R-8 (UHO)


LAND USE: ISOLATED NATURAL RESOURCE AREA / WETLAND


/ LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL / URBAN RESERVE AREA


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 212


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 213


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 214


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 215


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 216


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 217


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 218


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 11


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 10


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


UNPLATTED


LANDS


ZONING: R-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


UNPLATTED


LANDS


ZONING: A-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


UNPLATTED


LANDS


ZONING: R-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


C.S.M. NO. 753


ZONING: R-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


PARCEL 1


C.S.M. NO. 1545


ZONING: R-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


PARCEL 2


C.S.M. NO. 1545


ZONING: R-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


UNPLATTED


LANDS


ZONING: A-2


LAND USE: MIXED USE,


URBAN RESERVE AREA


ZONING: C-2


LAND USE: ISOLATED


NATURAL RESOURCE


AREA


ZONING: C-1 / C-2


LAND USE: ISOLATED


NATURAL RESOURCE


AREA & WATER /


WETLAND


ZONING: A-2


LAND USE: MIXED USE,


URBAN RESERVE AREA


ZONING: C-2


LAND USE: ISOLATED


NATURAL RESOURCE AREA


ZONING: R-10 (UHO)


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL / URBAN


RESERVE AREA


ZONING: C-2


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL / URBAN


RESERVE AREA


ZONING: R-9 (PUD)


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


POSSIBLE R-O-W


DEDICATION


PER COUNTY GIS


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W
W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W
W


W


W
W


W


W
W


W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


7


1


6


ZONING: C-1


LAND USE: ISOLATED


NATURAL RESOURCE


AREA / WETLAND


EXISTING


BUILDING


EXISTING


BUILDING


GARAGE


FLOORS


EL.=720.1


GARAGE


FLOORS


EL.=721.4


WETLANDS DELINEATED BY


WETLAND & WATERWAY


CONSULTING, LLC.


SEPTEMBER 22, 2018


VISION TRIANGLE


EASEMENT PER PLAT


50' LANDSCAPE, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


SW CORNER, SE 1/4


SE CORNER, SW 1/4


SEC. 23, T1N, R22E


(FOUND CONC. MON. W/ BRASS CAP)


REFERENCE BENCHMARK:


EL.=719.27


3' SANITARY SEWER


MAIN AND WATER


MAIN EASEMENT


15' DEDICATED PUBLIC


STORM WATER,


DRAINAGE, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


(
6


6
'
 
P


U
B


L
I
C


 
R


.
O


.
W


.
)


GRAVEL


DEDICATED PUBLIC SANITARY


SEWER MAIN, PUBLIC STORM


SEWER, PUBLIC WATER MAIN &


PRIVATE STREET, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


7


2


5


7


2


4


7


2


3


7


2


2


7


2


1


7


2


1


7


2


5


7


2


3


718


7


1


8


7


1


9


7
2
3


7
2
2


721


720


7


1


5


7


1


1


7
1
0


723


7
2
2


7


1


7


7


1


8


7


1


5


7


2


3


7


2


3


7


2


0


7


1


9


7


1


8


7


1


7


7


1


8


7


2


0


7


1


9


7


2


1


2


0


.


0


'


2


0


.


0


'


2


0


.


0


'


2


0


.
0


'


30.0'


3
0
.0


'


2


0


.


0


'


2


4


.


2


'


1


0


.
5


'


1


0


.


5


'


1


0


.


5


'


1


0


.


5


'


1
0
.
5
'


1


0


.


5


'


1


0


.
5


'


2


4


.


6


'


3
0
.
1
'


2


0


.
0


'


2
0
.
0
'


4
1
.8


'


1


0


.


5


'


10.5'


1


0


.


5


'


44.4'


3
2
.
2
'


4
0


.
0


'


2


0


.
0


'


2


0


.


0


'


2


0


.


0


'


4
2
.
5
'


2


0


.


0


'


5


5


.
9


'


1


0


.


5


'


1


0


.


5


'


1


0


.
5


'


1


0


.


5


'


1


0


.
5


'


1


0


.
5


'


4


0


.


6


'


3


5


.


6


'


1


0


.


5


'


1
0
.
5
'


3


0


.
0


'


3


0


.
0


'


PROPOSED


LOT 2


17,925 SQ. FT.


0.4115 ACRES


PROPOSED


LOT 4


579,063 SQ. FT.


13.2935 ACRES


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


P
R


O
P


.


B
L
D


G
 
2


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


3


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
4


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


5


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


6


P
R


O
P


.


B
L
D


G
 
7


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


0


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


9


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


8


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


1


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


2


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


3


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


4


P


R


O


P


.
B


L


D


G


 


1


5


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


6


P


R


O


P


.


B


L
D


G


 
1
7


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


8


PROPOSED


LOT 1


28,507 SQ. FT.


0.6544 ACRES


PROPOSED


LOT 3


29,712 SQ. FT.


0.6821 ACRES


(
U


N
-
I
M


P
R


O
V


E
D


)


P
U


B
L
I
C


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


(


P


U


B


L


I


C


 


S


T


R


E


E


T


)


(


U


N


-


I


M


P


R


O


V


E


D


)


1


0


1


S


T


 


C


O


U


R


T


(


P


U


B


L


I
C


 
S


T


R


E


E


T


)


1


0


3


R


D


 
C


O


U


R


T


PROP. PRIVATE 5' WIDE MULCH PATH.


CONNECTION TO BE DETERMINED BY


CONSULTATION WITH THE VILLAGE.


PROPOSED DEDICATED


WOODLAND PROTECTION AND


PRESERVATION, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


PROPOSED DEDICATED


WOODLAND PROTECTION AND


PRESERVATION, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


©
 
C


O
P


Y
R


I
G


H
T


 
2


0
1


8


REVISIONS SHEET


P
E
G


 
J
O


B
 
N


o
.


P
E
G


 
P
M


D
A
T
E


S
C
A
L
E


PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    


w
w


w
.
p


i
n


n
a


c
l
e


-
e


n
g


r
.
c


o
m


ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING


PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER


CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE


w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m


6


3


1
"
=


6
0


'


0
6


/
1


9
/
1


9


1
3


5
5


.
0


0


WISCONSIN OFFICE:
15850 W. BLUEMOUND ROAD


BROOKFIELD, WI 53005
(262) 754-8888


A
.
S


.
Z


.


CONCEPT PLAN


C
O


N
C


E
P


T
 
P


L
A


N


SAGEWOOD CONDOMINIUM AT VILLAGE GREEN AND EXPANSION AREA BEING PART OF


THE E 1/2 OF THE  SW 1/4 AND THE W 1/2 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 23, T1N, R22E,


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN


OWNER/DEVELOPER:


SAGEWOOD INVESTMENTS LLC


ATTN: TODD BECKER


N77 W23806 SUN VALLEY ROAD


SUSSEX, WI 53089


TEL: 414-218-8919


1" = 60'
0 120'


 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)


NORTH


Bearings referenced to the Wisconsin State Plane


Coordinate System, South Zone (N.A.D. 1927).  The east


line of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 23, Township 1 North,


Range 22 East has a bearing of N02°35'46"W.


LEGEND OF SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS


HANDICAP STALL


MAIL BOX


TELEPHONE MARKER


CABLE TV RISER/BOX


BUSH


TRAFFIC SIGNAL


GAS MARKER


CONIFER TREE


SPOT ELEVATION


DECIDUOUS TREE


DOWN SPOUT


TELEPHONE MANHOLE/VAULT


ELECTRIC MANHOLE/VAULT


ELECTRIC METER/PEDESTAL


GAS METER


GAS VALVE


GUY WIRE


UTILITY POLE


HYDRANT


CATCH BASIN


STORM INLET


SANITARY MANHOLE


STORM MANHOLE


IRON PIPE


IRON REBAR/ROD


SECTION MONUMENT


MAG NAIL


WATER MAIN


GAS MAIN


CABLE TELEVISION


STORM SEWER


SANITARY SEWER


TELEPHONE LINE


ELECTRIC LINE


OVERHEAD WIRES


WATER VALVE


FLOOD LIGHT


AIR CONDITIONING UNIT


WELL


CROSS CUT


BENCH MARK


CABLE TV MANHOLE/VAULT


CLEANOUT


LATERAL


FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE/VAULT


FIBER OPTIC MARKER


FIBER OPTIC LINE


W


FLAG POLE


BOLLARD


UNKNOWN MANHOLE


SPRINKLER VALVE


WETLANDS


TRANSFORMER


TELEPHONE PEDESTAL


DUMPSTER


WETLAND SYMBOL


DIRECTIONAL ARROW


BASKETBALL HOOP


SIGN


LIGHT POLE


CL. =CENTERLINE


CONC. =CONCRETE


EL. =ELEVATION


EXT. =EXISTING


INV. =INVERT


MON. =MONUMENT


P.O.B. =POINT OF BEGINNING


P.O.C. =POINT OF COMMENCEMENT


R.O.W =RIGHT OF WAY


SEC. =SECTION


SQ. FT. =SQUARE FEET


W/ =WITH


(R) =RECORDED AS


(D) =DEEDED AS


STANDPIPE


VENT


WATER SHUT OFF


TREE LINE


NO ACCESS


WATER MANHOLE


LEGAL DESCRIPTION:


NORTH PROPERTY:


Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2496, recorded in the office of the Kenosha County Register of Deeds, on October


19, 2005 as Document No. 1455403, being a part of the East Half of the Southwest Quarter and the West Half of the


Southeast Quarter of Section 23, Township 1 North, Range 22 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, lying and being


in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin.


NOW KNOWN AS


"Expansion Area" for the Sagewood Condominiums at Village Green, a condominium, as recorded in the Kenosha


County Register of Deeds office as Document No. 1455410.


Tax Key No. 92-4-122-233-0400


SOUTH PROPERTY:


Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 2496, recorded in the office of the Kenosha County Register of Deeds, on October


19, 2005 as Document No. 1455403, being a part of the East Half of the Southwest Quarter and the West Half of the


Southeast Quarter of Section 23, Township 1 North, Range 22 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, lying and being


in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin.


NOW KNOWN AS


Sagewood Condominiums at Village Green, a condominium,


as recorded in the Kenosha County Register of Deeds office


as Document No. 1455410.


Tax Key No. 92-4-122-233-0311 THROUGH 92-4-122-233-0394


GENERAL NOTES:


1. Survey prepared for: SAGEWOOD INVESTMENTS LLC


2. Field work completed on OCTOBER 11, 2018


3. Flood Zone Classification: The property lies with in Zone "X" of the Flood


Insurance Rate Map Community Panel No. 55059C0213D  dated JUNE


19, 2012.  Zone "X" areas are determined to be outside the 0.2% annual


chance floodplain.


4. Vertical Datum: National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929 (NGVD29).


Contours are shown at a 1' interval based on actual ground survey of the


current ground terrain. Reference Benchmark: Concrete monument with


brass cap at the southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 Section 23, Town


1 North, Range 22 East, Elevation = 719.27.


5. Underground utility locations shown are based on field location markings


by Digger's Hotline ticket #20182313017 with a clear date of JUNE 11,


2018. The location and size of underground structures and utilities shown


hereon have been located based on a reasonable visual observation and


are shown for informational purposes only. PINNACLE ENGINEERING


GROUP, LLC. does not guarantee the location of utilities shown. Contact


Digger's Hotline prior to the start of any activity.


NOTES:


1. SEE SHEET 4 FOR EXISTING AND PROPOSED ZONING AND


LAND USES.


2. NUMBER OF DWELLING UNITS PER ACRE


SITE AREA = 17.3 ACRES (753,821 SF)


NUMBER OF DWELLING UNITS = 44


DWELLING UNITS PER ACRE = 2.54


SQUARE FEET PER DWELLING UNIT = 17,132


3. PONDS 1 AND 2 WERE PREVIOUSLY SIZED TO ACCOMMODATE


RUNOFF AND MEET STORMWATER REQUIREMENTS FOR


PROPOSED LOTS 1 AND 2.


4. THE WESTERLY WETLAND SOUTH OF 101ST COURT WAS


DETERMINED TO BE AN ARTIFICIAL WETLAND PER WISCONSIN


DNR (EXE-SE-2018-30-02708) ON SEPTEMBER 6, 2018 AND TO


HAVE NO US ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEER JURISDICTION PER


MVP-2018-02446-RAN DATED SEPTEMBER 25, 2018


5. EXISTING UTILITIES WILL SERVE ALL PROPOSED UNITS.  ALL


UTILITIES ON SITE ARE PUBLIC AND DEDICATED TO THE


VILLAGE.


6. PUD MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACKS:


a. 10' STREET SETBACK


b. 30' SETBACK FROM 47TH AVENUE


c. 20' SIDE YARDS BETWEEN BUILDINGS


d. 15' REAR SETBACK


SEE NOTE 4


KEYSTONE CONDOMINIUMS


ENGINEER:


PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP


ATTN: ANTHONY ZANON


15850 W. BLUEMOUND ROAD SUITE 210


BROOKFIELD, WI 53005


TEL: 262-754-8888


CHECK..MAY HAVE
BEEN ACQUIRED
BY DOT AS PART
OF 165
ROUNDABOUT
IMPROVMENT
PLAT


IF PUBLIC
ROADWAYS...EASEMENT
TO BE TERMINATED AND
ROW ESTABLISHED


37 ft


PROVIDE OVERALL
CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
(SEWER, WATER , STORM) FOR
REVIEW.  PLAN SHALL SHOW
EXTENTIONS, MODIFICATIONS,
AND ABANDONMENTS AS
APPLICABLE ALONG WITH
SERVICE / LATERAL LAYOUT


SUMP PUMP OUTLET STORM SEWER
ALIGNMENT WILL NEED TO BE REVISED.  KEEP
STORM / MH'S WITHIN ROADWAY WITH SUMP
LATERALS TO BUILDINGS.  SHOW SUMP
LATERALS TO BUILDINGS AND SHOW SUMP
LOCATIONS


PUBLIC ROADWAY IS
33-FEET BACK OF CURB
(COMPOSITE PAVEMENT). 
SEE VILLAGE STANDARD
DETAILS


37
 ft


SHOW PLANNED
STORM
RELOCATION


PROVIDE ADDTIONAL
ROW FOR POTENTIAL
FUTURE SIDEWALK


PROVIDE SIDEWALK 
ALONG 47TH AVE FROM
103RD COURT (SOUTH)
TO EXISTING SIDEWALK
AT MAIN STREET


66
 ft


PROVIDE STREET
LIGHT(S) AT
INTERSCTIONS
(TYP)


PROVIDE STREET LIGHT
AT END OF CUL-DE-SAC
(TYP). 


PROVIDE
STREET
LIGHT 


LABEL SIZE / I.E. OF
EXISTING CROSS
STORM SEWER


DETAILED DESIGN TO
ENSURE 100-YEAR STORM
EVENT FOR CONTRIBUTING
AREA IS ADEQUATLY
CONVEYED OVERLAND
WITHOUT IMPACTING BLDG.
 PROVIDE ANALYSIS


SHOW EXISTING
TREES


60 ft
76 ft


VOPP ENG REVIEW
PLAN MARK UP
JULY 18, 2019


FUTURE
SIDWALK
CONTRIBUTION







NE CORNER


LOT 2 C.S.M. NO. 2496


P.O.B.


C


1


C
2


C
3


C
4


C
5


C
6


C
7


C
8


C


9


C10


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


P
R


O
P


.


B
L
D


G
 
2


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


3


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
4


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


5


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


6


P
R


O
P


.


B
L
D


G
 
7


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


0


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


9


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


8


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


1


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


2


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


3


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


4


P


R


O


P


.
B


L


D


G


 


1


5


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


6


P


R


O


P


.


B


L
D


G


 
1
7


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


8


PROPOSED DEDICATED


WOODLAND PROTECTION AND


PRESERVATION, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


PROPOSED DEDICATED


WOODLAND PROTECTION AND


PRESERVATION, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


(100' PUBLIC R.O.W.)


4
7


T
H


 
A


V
E


N
U


E


NE CORNER


LOT 2 C.S.M. NO. 2496


P.O.B.


50' HIGHWAY SETBACK LINE


(
(
R


)
 
S


0
2
°
3
5
'
4
6
"
E


)


OUTLOT 4


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


LOT 211


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 12


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


104TH STR


STATE TRUNK HIG


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 C
U


R
B


CO
NCRETE C


URB


C


O


N


C


.
 
C


U


R


B


SITE BENCHMARK:


SW FLANGE BOLT


HYDRANT EL.=715.96


SITE BENCHMARK:


SW FLANGE BOLT


HYDRANT EL.=718.07


EDGE OF WATER


EL.=706.4


06/20/18


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


GRAVEL


 
A


S


P


H


A


L


T


 
P


A


V


E


M


E


N


T


 A
S


P
H


A
L
T


 P
A


V
E


M
E


N
T


 A
SPHALT P


AVEM
ENT


1


2


3
4


5


6


7


8


9


18


19


16


15


14


13


12


11


10


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


28


29


30


27


31


32


33


34


35


36


37


38


39


40


41


42


43


44


45


46


47


48


49


52


50


53


61 62


54


64


55


60


57


59


65


66


63


67


68


69


79


78


82


80


81


77


75


76


70


71


72


73


74


83


84


85


86


87


88


89


90


93


91


92


94


95


96


97


98


99


100


101


102


103


105


106


107


104


112


111


110


109


108


113


114


115


116


132


121


118


131


133


127


124
120


119


123


126


125


122


128


129


130


134


135


136


137


138


139


140


141


142


143


144


145


146


147


152


151


150


149


148


153


155


154


156


157


158


159


160


161


163


164


165


166


167


181


168


180


179


169


170


171


172


174


173


177


176


175


178


MAIN STREET


POND 2


POND 1


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 C
U


R
B


 M
E


D
IA


N


LOT 212


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 213


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 214


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 215


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 216


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 217


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 218


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 11


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


LOT 10


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


EXISTING


BUILDING


EXISTING


BUILDING


(
6


6
'
 
P


U
B


L
I
C


 
R


.
O


.
W


.
)


GRAVEL


PLANT SCHEDULE


A/C


A/C


A/C


A/C


Trees to be removed


River Birch Multi-Trunk


(4)


Blue Star Juniper


(6)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(13)


Palace Purple Coralbells


(16)


Dense Yew


(3)


Endless Summer Hydrangea


(4)


(3)


Knock Out Rose


(11)


Max Frei Geranium


Karl Foerster Reed Grass


(6)


Dense Yew


(12)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(12)


Wine & Roses Weigela


(6)


Dwarf Burning Bush


(2)


Goldmound Spirea


(6)


(2)


Miss Kim Lilac


(12)


Palace Purple Coralbells


(6)


Blue Star Juniper


(10)


Zing Rose Maiden Pink Dianthus


(5)


Hicks Yew


River Birch Multi-Trunk


(4)


Blue Star Juniper


(6)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(13)


Palace Purple Coralbells


(16)


Dense Yew


(3)


Endless Summer Hydrangea


(4)


(3)


Knock Out Rose


(11)


Max Frei Geranium


May Night Salvia


(7)


Arrowwood Viburnum


(23)


River Birch Multi-Trunk


(1)


(3)


Black Hills Spruce


(3)


Cleveland Select Pear


(3)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(4)


Knock Out Rose


(3)


May Night Salvia


(5)


Hicks Yew


(3)


May Night Salvia


(4)


Goldflame Spirea


(3)


Palace Purple Coralbells


(6)


Goldmound Spirea


(2)


Dwarf Burning Bush


(12)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(6)


Wine & Roses Weigela


(12)


Dense Yew


(6)


Karl Foerster Reed Grass


Knock Out Rose


(4)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(3)


May Night Salvia


(6)


Hicks Yew


(5)


Palace Purple Coralbells


(3)


Goldflame Spirea


(4)


(2)


Miss Kim Lilac


(6)


Blue Star Juniper


(5)


Hicks Yew


(10)


Zing Rose Maiden Pink Dianthus


(12)


Palace Purple Coralbells


7530 288th AVENUE
SALEM, WISCONSIN 53168


(262) 537-2111   (262) 537-4080   (262) 843-3886
FAX (262) 537-3434


www.breezyhillnursery.com
email: contact@breezyhillnursery.com


Inc.


N96 W21627 COUNTY LINE ROAD
MENOMONEE FALLS, WISCONSIN 53051 Pleasant Prairie, WI


Keystone Condominiums Designed By Mike Schierl
Drawn By Kathy Feucht
Date January 23rd, 2019
Revised February 14th, 2019-kf 
Project #-003895


Sheet


L1
N


Conceptual Landscape Plan


Revised February 18th, 2019-kf 


MAY REQUIRE STREET
TREE EASEMENT
ADJACENT TO ROW TO
PLACE STREET TREES DUE
TO SIDEWALK.  ADDRESS
WITH DETAILED CIVIL
PLANS







PSM


RWI


MADISON  ▌MILWAUKEE


KENOSHA ▌APPLETON ▌WAUSAU


CREATE THE VISION


JSD PROJECT NO:


SHEET NUMBER:


SHEET TITLE:


Design/Drawn:


Approved:


PLAN MODIFICATIONS:


CLIENT:


PROJECT:


# Description:Date:


TELL THE STORY


TH
ES


E 
PL


AN
S 


AN
D


 D
ES


IG
N


S 
AR


E 
C


O
PY


R
IG


H
T 


PR
O


TE
C


TE
D


 A
N


D
 M


AY
 N


O
T 


BE
 U


SE
D


 IN
 W


H
O


LE
 O


R
 IN


 P
AR


T 
W


IT
H


O
U


T 
TH


E 
W


R
IT


TE
N


 C
O


N
SE


N
T 


O
F 


JS
D


 P
R


O
FE


SS
IO


N
AL


 S
ER


VI
C


ES
, I


N
C


.


CLIENT ADDRESS:


PROJECT LOCATION:


MILWAUKEE REGIONAL OFFICE


W238 N1610 BUSSE ROAD, SUITE 100


WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53188


P. 262.513.0666


8501 75TH STREET, SUITE H


KENOSHA, WI 53142


GREEN BAY TRAIL


CONDOMINIUMS


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE


KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN


18-8835


Hearing Impaired TDD (800) 542-2289


Milwaukee Area (262) 432-7910


01-25-19
PRELIMINARY PLAN SUBMITTAL


REV. PER VILLAGE COMMENTS03/29/191


SITE NOTES AND DETAILS


C7.2


TYPICAL SECTION FOR 66' STREET


HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE RAMPS


37'


66' R/W


30"


14.5'


30"


5'


8'


5'


4.5'


3'12.5'


10'


3'


1.5'


SIDEWALK (TYP)


1'(TYP)


14.5'


8'


R/WR/W


16' 16'


CURB BOX 1' OFF


SIDEWALK (TYP)


1-1/2" ASPHALTIC


CONCRETE PAVEMENT


(UPPER LAYER)


3-1/2" ASPHALTIC


CONCRETE PAVEMENT


(LOWER LAYER)


EXISTING BASE


AGGREGATE DENSE


EXISTING 30" MOUNTABLE


CURB & GUTTER


STREET SIGNS (TYP)


STREET LIGHTS (TYP)


FIRE HYDRANT (TYP)


GAS LINE (TYP)


FIBER OPTICS


CORRIDOR (TYP)


1.5'


10'


EASEMENT


10'


EASEMENT


EXAMPLE FOR REFERENCE..
MODIFY DETAILS AS
NEEDED FOR SPECIFIC
PROJECT







ELIMINATE
90-DEGREE
BEND.  DO
SOMETHING
SIMILIAR TO
THE GREEN
BAY TRAILS
WITH THE
PIPE SWEEP.


EXAMPLE FOR
WATER SERVICE


SPLIT.  UPDATE AND
REVISED DETAIL PER


PROJECT















































































































W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


(100' PUBLIC R.O.W.)


4
7
T


H
 
A


V
E


N
U


E


NE CORNER


LOT 2 C.S.M. NO. 2496


P.O.B.


W
E


S
T


 
L
I
N


E
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


E
 
1
/
4
 
S


E
C


.
 
2
3
,
 
T


1
N


,
 
R


2
2
E


E
A


S
T


 
L
I
N


E
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


W
 
1
/
4
 
S


E
C


.
 
2
3
,
 
T


1
N


,
 
R


2
2
E


OUTLOT 2


C.S.M. NO. 2682


PARCEL 1


C.S.M. NO. 2311


PARCEL 1


C.S.M. NO. 2682


50' HIGHWAY SETBACK LINE


NO ACCESS


(
(
R


)
 
S


0
2
°
3
5
'
4
6
"
E


)


OUTLOT 4


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


LOT 211


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 12


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


NW CORNER, SE 1/4


NE CORNER, SW 1/4


SEC. 23, T1N, R22E


(FOUND CONC. MON. W/ BRASS CAP)


N
0
2
°
3
5
'
4
6
"
W
 


 


2
6
6
4
.
6
0
'


104TH STREET


STATE TRUNK HIGHWAY "165"


EXPANSION AREA


SAGEWOOD


CONDOMINIUMS AT


VILLAGE GREEN


457,570 SQ. FT.


10.5044 ACRES


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 W


A
L
K


CONCRETE


DRIVE


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 C
U


R
B


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 C
U


R
B


CO
NCRETE C


URB


CO
NCRETE W


ALK


C


O


N


C


.
 
C


U


R


B


SITE BENCHMARK:


SW FLANGE BOLT


HYDRANT EL.=715.96


SITE BENCHMARK:


SW FLANGE BOLT


HYDRANT EL.=718.07


WETLANDS


DELINEATED BY


WETLAND &


WATERWAY


CONSULTING, LLC.


MAY 23, 2018


EDGE OF WATER


EL.=697.8


06/20/18


EDGE OF WATER


EL.=706.4


06/20/18


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


EDGE OF WATER


EL.=699.1


06/20/18


GRAVEL


 
A


S


P


H


A


L


T


 
P


A


V


E


M


E


N


T


 A
S


P
H


A
L
T


 P
A


V
E


M
E


N
T


 A
SPHALT P


AVEM
ENT


MAIN STREET


15' DEDICATED


PUBLIC STORM


WATER,


DRAINAGE,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


DEDICATED


WOODLAND


PROTECTION AND


PRESERVATION,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


DEDICATED PUBLIC


SANITARY SEWER


MAIN, PUBLIC STORM


SEWER, PUBLIC


WATER MAIN &


PRIVATE STREET,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


DEDICATED WOODLAND


PROTECTION AND


PRESERVATION, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


DEDICATED PUBLIC


SANITARY SEWER


MAIN, PUBLIC


STORM SEWER,


PUBLIC WATER MAIN


& PRIVATE STREET,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


DEDICATED STORM


WATER, DRAINAGE,


RETENTION BASIN,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


DEDICATED


UTILITY, ACCESS


AND MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


SET 3/4" X 18"


IRON REBAR


SET 3/4" X 18"


IRON REBAR


FOUND 2"


IRON PIPE


FOUND 2"


IRON PIPE


FOUND 2"


IRON PIPE


FOUND 2"


IRON PIPE


FOUND


CAPPED


IRON PIPE


FOUND


CAPPED


IRON PIPE


FOUND CAPPED


IRON PIPE


FOUND 1"


IRON PIPE


FOUND 1"


IRON PIPE


FOUND CAPPED


IRON PIPE


FOUND


CAPPED


IRON PIPE


FOUND


CAPPED


IRON PIPES


FOUND


CAPPED


IRON PIPES


FOUND 1"


IRON PIPE


C5


209.2
1'


N87°2
4'14"E


S
0
2
°
3
5
'
4
5
"
E
 


 


7
6
5
.
6
2
'


S


6


0


°


0


9


'


0


8


"


W


 


 


1


3


9


.


4


1


'


S


5


2


°


1


4


'


4


6


"


W


 


 


1


3


3


.


2


5


'


N


7


3


°


5


9


'
4


7


"


W


1


0


7


.
3


8


'


S80°32'28"W


37.59'


N10°18'07"W


23.50'


S


7


9


°
4


1


'
5


3


"
W


 


 


1


1


5


.
0


9


'


S10°18'07"E


21.80'


1


1


7


.
5


1


'


N


1


0


°
1


8


'
0


7


"
W


C
1


 
1
0
0
.
0
0
'


N
0
0
°
5
5
'
5
7
"
E


C
2


N
0
5
°
0
5
'
1
4
"
W
 


 


1
6
4
.
7
7
'


C
3


N
0
2
°
2
6
'
5
4
"
E
 


 


2
4
9
.
0
0
'


C


4


S80°32'28"W


32.46'


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


(


P


R


I


V


A


T


E


 


S


T


R


E


E


T


)


(


U


N


-


I


M


P


R


O


V


E


D


)


1


0


1


S


T


 


C


O


U


R


T


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


CONCRETE


DRIVE


(UN-IMPROVED)


PRIVATE STREET


POND 2


POND 1


POND


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 C
U


R
B


 M
E


D
IA


N


SITE BENCHMARK:


SE FLANGE BOLT


HYDRANT EL.=707.01


37.1'


7


1


4


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


1


7


1


0


7


0


9


7


0


8


7


0


7


7


0


5


7


0


4


7


0


3


7


0


2


7


0


1


7


0


0


700


7


0


1


7


0


2


7


0


3


7


0


4


7


0


5


7


0


7


7


0


8


7


0


8


7


1


6


7


1


5


7


1


4


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


1


7


1


0


7


0


8


7


0


6


7


0


8


7


0


7


7


0


6


707


7


0


5


7
0
6


7


0


8


7


1


0


7


1


2


7


1


3


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


3


7


1


4


7


1


5


7


1


6


7


1


7
7


1


8


7


1


9


7


1


6


7


1


5


7


1


4


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


0


7


0


5


7


0


4


7


1


3


7


1


4


7


1


5
7


1


7


718


7
1
9


720


7


2


2


6
9
5


700


705


710


6


9


3


6
9
2


6
9
1


6
9
1


7
0
0


6
9
5


7
0
0


7
0
5


7
1
0


7
1
5


7


1


4


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


1


6


9


4


7


1


0


7


0


9


7
0
5


7
0
4


6


9


1


7


1


5


7


1


0


715


7


1


0


7


1


4


7


1


6


7


1


7


7


1


5


7


1


3


7


1


1


7


1


0


7


1


0


7


0


7


7


0


9


7


1


0


7


0


7


7


0


6


7


0


5


7


0


4


7


0


5


7


0


0


7


0


0


7


0


1


7


0


2


7


0


4


7


0


6


7


0


9


7


1


0


7


1


1


7


1


2


7


1


3


7
1
4


7


1


3


7


1


2


7


1


1


7
1
2


7


1


1


7


1


0


7


0


9


7


0


7


7


0


6


7


0


8


7


0


6


7


0


4


7


0


4


7


0


5


7


0


6


7


0


5


7


0


5


7


0


5


7


0


0


700


705


7
0
5


SET 3/4" X 18"


IRON REBAR


DEDICATED


WETLAND


PROTECTION,


PRESERVATION,


ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


WETLANDS DELINEATED BY


WETLAND & WATERWAY


CONSULTING, LLC.


MAY 23, 2018


S
0
2
°
3
5
'
4
5
"
E
 


 


6
7
4
.
3
2
'


S89°16'41"W  
492.66'


S89°58'54"W


35.91'


N09°52'21"E


172.90'


N10°18'07"W  165.58'


C


6


C


7


C
8


CURVE TABLE


CURVE NO.


C1


C2


C3


C4


C5


C6


C7


C8


LENGTH


140.59'


56.00'


61.42'


31.14'


286.23'


32.34'


57.62'


117.25'


RADIUS


717.00'


533.00'


467.00'


20.00'


3850.00'


20.00'


455.00'


333.00'


CHORD BEARING


N04°41'05"W


N02°04'38"W


N01°19'10"W


N47°03'21"E


N89°32'02"E


S43°42'02.5"E


S06°14'41"W


N00°12'53"W


CHORD LENGTH


140.36'


55.97'


61.38'


28.09'


286.16'


28.93'


57.58'


116.65'


15' X 15' VISION


CORNER


EASEMENT (TYP.)


15' X 15' VISION


CORNER


EASEMENT (TYP.)


ZONING: PR-1


LAND USE: PARK, RECREATION


AND OTHER OPEN SPACE


LANDS / WATER


VILLAGE GREEN


CONDOMINIUM


ZONING: R-8 (UHO)


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL /


URBAN RESERVE AREA


VILLAGE GREEN


CONDOMINIUM


ZONING: R-8 (UHO)


LAND USE: ISOLATED NATURAL RESOURCE AREA / WETLAND


/ LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL / URBAN RESERVE AREA


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 212


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 213


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 214


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 215


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 216


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 217


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 218


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 11


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


LOT 10


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


ZONING: R-4


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


UNPLATTED


LANDS


ZONING: R-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


UNPLATTED


LANDS


ZONING: A-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


UNPLATTED


LANDS


ZONING: R-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


C.S.M. NO. 753


ZONING: R-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


PARCEL 1


C.S.M. NO. 1545


ZONING: R-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


PARCEL 2


C.S.M. NO. 1545


ZONING: R-3


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


UNPLATTED


LANDS


ZONING: A-2


LAND USE: MIXED USE,


URBAN RESERVE AREA


ZONING: C-2


LAND USE: ISOLATED


NATURAL RESOURCE


AREA


ZONING: C-1 / C-2


LAND USE: ISOLATED


NATURAL RESOURCE


AREA & WATER /


WETLAND


ZONING: A-2


LAND USE: MIXED USE,


URBAN RESERVE AREA


ZONING: C-2


LAND USE: ISOLATED


NATURAL RESOURCE AREA


ZONING: R-10 (UHO)


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL / URBAN


RESERVE AREA


ZONING: C-2


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL / URBAN


RESERVE AREA


ZONING: R-9 (PUD)


LAND USE: LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


POSSIBLE R-O-W


DEDICATION


PER COUNTY GIS


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W
W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W
W


W


W
W


W
W


W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


7
1
6


(


P


R


I


V


A


T


E


 


S


T


R


E


E


T


)


1


0


3


R


D


 


C


O


U


R


T


ZONING: C-1


LAND USE: ISOLATED


NATURAL RESOURCE


AREA / WETLAND


EXISTING


BUILDING


EXISTING


BUILDING


GARAGE


FLOORS


EL.=720.1


GARAGE


FLOORS


EL.=721.4


WETLANDS DELINEATED BY


WETLAND & WATERWAY


CONSULTING, LLC.


SEPTEMBER 22, 2018


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=704.95


8" N=695.15


8" S=695.25


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=713.44


8" N=696.44


8" S=696.54


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=712.69


8" N=697.29


8" S=697.29


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=708.89


8" W=697.99


8" SE=698.09


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=707.13


8" NW=698.88


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=713.65


8" N=700.80


8" S=700.93


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=715.90


8" N=704.06


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=716.31


8" W=708.00


8" SE=707.99


STORM


MANHOLE


RIM=717.15


15" W=712.60


15" E=712.57


15" S=712.58


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=717.69


8" E=708.67


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=715.92


8" NW=707.47


8" S=707.42


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=715.96


8" N=706.95


8" S=706.93


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=716.50


8" N=706.52


8" SW=706.50


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=717.21


8" NE=706.38


8" W=706.21


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=717.97


8" E=705.99


8" S=705.99


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=723.53


8" W=707.49


8" S=707.47


SANITARY


MANHOLE


RIM=717.10


8" N=705.18


24" W=704.50


24" E=704.65


INLET


RIM=711.64


15" S=708.44


15" W=708.44


INLET


15" N=710.30


15" SW=710.29


INV.=697.21


INLET


15" N=707.95


15" S=707.82


15" E=702.35


INLET


15" S=708.57


15" N=708.60


15" NW=708.59


4" NE=710.62


INLET


12" S=712.81


15" E=712.79


INLET


12" N=713.10


INLET


15" NW=709.34


15" SE=709.29


INLET


15" SE=710.81


12" S=710.90


15" W=710.85


INLET


12" NW=711.88


INLET


RIM=716.84


15" E=713.56


CATCH BASIN


30" N=700.20


30" SE=700.05


STORM MANHOLE


RIM-707.76


30" N=699.61


30" S=699.46


STORM MANHOLE


RIM=708.84


30" N=697.94


30" E=697.79


24" RCP CULVERT


INV.=697.26


15" CULVERT


INV.=697.56


STORM


MANHOLE


RIM=703.97


15" NE=696.88


15" SW=696.88


INLET


12" E=703.40


INLET


30" NW=701.27


30" S=701.27


STORM MANHOLE


RIM=706.94


30" S=701.49


30" NW=701.54


CATCH


BASIN


STORM MANHOLE


RIM=708.30


30" NW=702.95


30" SE=702.95


CATCH BASIN


12" N=709.22


6" S=709.99


CATCH BASIN


12" NW=708.40


12" S=708.55


INLET


15" W=707.14


15" S=707.14


12" SE=707.19


6" N=707.29


INLET


15" N=707.16


INLET


RIM=703.50


15" N=700.90


INLET


RIM=703.22


15" S=700.32


15" N=700.27


INLET


RIM=703.51


15" S=699.63


15" N=699.61


VERTICAL


6" PVC


24" RCP CULVERT


INV.=699.04


4" PVC


INV.=701.82


4" PVC


INV.=701.82


INLET


RIM=705.37


INLET


RIM=705.41


INLET


RIM=705.36


INLET


RIM=705.30


30" SW=699.80


30" E=699.75


12" N=701.10


15" W=700.30


INLET


RIM=705.27


30" RCP CULVERT


INV.=700.65


15" RCP CULVERT


INV.=699.62


STORM MANHOLE


RIM=705.00


24" SW=700.50


30" NE=700.50


15" S=700.850


INLET RIM=703.89


15" S=700.99


15" N=700.99


INLET RIM=704.12


15" N=701.17


15" S=701.17


INLET RIM=704.16


15" W=701.86


INLET


RIM=704.16


15" N=701.56


15" E=701.66


INLET


RIM=704.99


INLET


RIM=705.20


15" SE=702.55


STORM MANHOLE


RIM=709.67


24" SW=705.37


24" NE=702.02


18" RCP CULVERT


INV.=705.62


18" RCP CULVERT


INV.=706.16


18" RCP CULVERT


INV.=706.28


18" RCP CULVERT


INV.=706.08


INLET


RIM=708.92


15" E=706.22


15" W=706.12


INLET


RIM=706.12


15" E=701.92


15" NW=701.92


15" N=701.92


INLET


RIM=706.16


15" W=703.61


STORM


MANHOLE


RIM=712.39


15" NE=708.34


30" E=705.84


30" S=705.89


INLET


RIM=712.69


15" SW=709.44


INLET


RIM=711.70


15" N=708.45


STORM


MANHOLE


RIM=711.98


30" S=706.28


30" N=706.23


15" E=707.73


15" W=707.73


INLET


RIM=711.74


15" S=708.04


15" E=707.94


INLET


RIM=711.76


15" N=708.06


INLET


RIM=712.26


30" E=706.86


30" W=706.96


STORM MANHOLE


RIM=712.58


30" N=706.53


15" E=708.73


30" W=706.83


INLET


RIM=712.27


15" W=709.27


INLET


RIM=704.07


15" W=700.65


INLET


RIM=704.14


15" N=700.39


15" E=700.59


15" S=700.49


30" RCP


CULVERT


INV.=699.54


4" PVC


INV.=701.89


15" RCP CULVERT


INV.=696.61


INLET


RIM=718.41


CATCH BASIN


RIM=716.37


18" CMP CULVERT


INV.=716.43


18" RCP CULVERT


INV.=716.19


INLET


RIM=719.05


INLET


RIM=720.77


STORM MANHOLE


RIM=723.06


STORM MANHOLE


RIM=721.30


STORM MANHOLE


RIM=719.59


TRENCH DRAIN


RIM=719.6


TRENCH


DRAIN


RIM=720.0


INLET


RIM=717.96


15" NE=711.71


15" N=712.86


15" W=711.74


INLET


RIM=717.88


15" S=714.42


4" N=714.43


4" N=714.44


INLET


RIM=724.20


15" NE=721.63


STORM MANHOLE


RIM=724.16


15" SW=720.94


15" E=720.76


INLET


RIM=724.00


15" S=721.23


INLET


RIM=718.71


15" N=715.87


VISION TRIANGLE


EASEMENT PER PLAT


50' LANDSCAPE, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


SW CORNER, SE 1/4


SE CORNER, SW 1/4


SEC. 23, T1N, R22E


(FOUND CONC. MON. W/ BRASS CAP)


REFERENCE BENCHMARK:


EL.=719.27


15" RCP CULVERT


INV.=713.75


3' SANITARY SEWER


MAIN AND WATER


MAIN EASEMENT


SAGEWOOD


CONDOMINIUMS AT


VILLAGE GREEN


296,251 SQ. FT.


6.8010 ACRES


15' DEDICATED PUBLIC


STORM WATER,


DRAINAGE, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE


EASEMENT


(
6


6
'
 
P


U
B


L
I
C


 
R


.
O


.
W


.
)


GRAVEL


DEDICATED PUBLIC SANITARY


SEWER MAIN, PUBLIC STORM


SEWER, PUBLIC WATER MAIN &


PRIVATE STREET, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


7


2


5


7


2


4


7


2


3


7


2


2


7


2


1


7


2


1


7


2


5


7


2


3


718


7


1


8


7


1


9


7
2
3


7
2
2


721


720


7


1


5


7


1


1


7
1
0


723


7
2
2


7


1


7


7


1


8


7


1


5


7


2


3


7


2


3


7


2


0


7


1


9


7


1


8


7


1


7


7


1


8


7


2


0


7


1


9


7


2


1


©
 
C


O
P


Y
R


I
G


H
T


 
2


0
1


8


REVISIONS SHEET


P
E
G


 
J
O


B
 
N


o
.


P
E
G


 
P
M


D
A
T
E


S
C
A
L
E


PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    


w
w


w
.
p


i
n


n
a


c
l
e


-
e


n
g


r
.
c


o
m


ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING


PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER


CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE


w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m


6


1


1
"
=


6
0


'


0
6


/
1


9
/
1


9


1
3


5
5


.
0


0


WISCONSIN OFFICE:
15850 W. BLUEMOUND ROAD


BROOKFIELD, WI 53005
(262) 754-8888


1" = 60'
0 120'


 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)


NORTH


Bearings referenced to the Wisconsin State Plane


Coordinate System, South Zone (N.A.D. 1927).  The east


line of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 23, Township 1 North,


Range 22 East has a bearing of N02°35'46"W.


GENERAL NOTES:


1. Survey prepared for: SAGEWOOD INVESTMENTS LLC


2. Field work completed on OCTOBER 11, 2018


3. Flood Zone Classification: The property lies with in Zone "X" of the Flood


Insurance Rate Map Community Panel No. 55059C0213D  dated JUNE


19, 2012.  Zone "X" areas are determined to be outside the 0.2% annual


chance floodplain.


4. Vertical Datum: National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929 (NGVD29).


Contours are shown at a 1' interval based on actual ground survey of the


current ground terrain. Reference Benchmark: Concrete monument with


brass cap at the southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 Section 23, Town


1 North, Range 22 East, Elevation = 719.27.


5. Underground utility locations shown are based on field location markings


by Digger's Hotline ticket #20182313017 with a clear date of JUNE 11,


2018. The location and size of underground structures and utilities shown


hereon have been located based on a reasonable visual observation and


are shown for informational purposes only. PINNACLE ENGINEERING


GROUP, LLC. does not guarantee the location of utilities shown. Contact


Digger's Hotline prior to the start of any activity.


LEGEND OF SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS


HANDICAP STALL


MAIL BOX


TELEPHONE MARKER


CABLE TV RISER/BOX


BUSH


TRAFFIC SIGNAL


GAS MARKER


CONIFER TREE


SPOT ELEVATION


DECIDUOUS TREE


DOWN SPOUT


TELEPHONE MANHOLE/VAULT


ELECTRIC MANHOLE/VAULT


ELECTRIC METER/PEDESTAL


GAS METER


GAS VALVE


GUY WIRE


UTILITY POLE


HYDRANT


CATCH BASIN


STORM INLET


SANITARY MANHOLE


STORM MANHOLE


IRON PIPE


IRON REBAR/ROD


SECTION MONUMENT


MAG NAIL


WATER MAIN


GAS MAIN


CABLE TELEVISION


STORM SEWER


SANITARY SEWER


TELEPHONE LINE


ELECTRIC LINE


OVERHEAD WIRES


WATER VALVE


FLOOD LIGHT


AIR CONDITIONING UNIT


WELL


CROSS CUT


BENCH MARK


CABLE TV MANHOLE/VAULT


CLEANOUT


LATERAL


FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE/VAULT


FIBER OPTIC MARKER


FIBER OPTIC LINE


W


FLAG POLE


BOLLARD


UNKNOWN MANHOLE


SPRINKLER VALVE


WETLANDS


TRANSFORMER


TELEPHONE PEDESTAL


DUMPSTER


WETLAND SYMBOL


DIRECTIONAL ARROW


BASKETBALL HOOP


SIGN


LIGHT POLE


CL. =CENTERLINE


CONC. =CONCRETE


EL. =ELEVATION


EXT. =EXISTING


INV. =INVERT


MON. =MONUMENT


P.O.B. =POINT OF BEGINNING


P.O.C. =POINT OF COMMENCEMENT


R.O.W =RIGHT OF WAY


SEC. =SECTION


SQ. FT. =SQUARE FEET


W/ =WITH


(R) =RECORDED AS


(D) =DEEDED AS


STANDPIPE


VENT


WATER SHUT OFF


TREE LINE


NO ACCESS


WATER MANHOLE


A
.
S


.
Z


.


EXISTING SITE PLAN


E
X


I
S


T
I
N


G
 
S


I
T
E
 
P


L
A


N


SAGEWOOD CONDOMINIUM AT VILLAGE GREEN AND EXPANSION AREA BEING PART OF


THE E 1/2 OF THE  SW 1/4 AND THE W 1/2 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 23, T1N, R22E,


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN


LEGAL DESCRIPTION:


NORTH PROPERTY:


Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 2496, recorded in the office of the Kenosha County Register of Deeds, on October


19, 2005 as Document No. 1455403, being a part of the East Half of the Southwest Quarter and the West Half of the


Southeast Quarter of Section 23, Township 1 North, Range 22 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, lying and being


in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin.


NOW KNOWN AS


"Expansion Area" for the Sagewood Condominiums at Village Green, a condominium, as recorded in the Kenosha


County Register of Deeds office as Document No. 1455410.


Tax Key No. 92-4-122-233-0400


SOUTH PROPERTY:


Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 2496, recorded in the office of the Kenosha County Register of Deeds, on October


19, 2005 as Document No. 1455403, being a part of the East Half of the Southwest Quarter and the West Half of the


Southeast Quarter of Section 23, Township 1 North, Range 22 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, lying and being


in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin.


NOW KNOWN AS


Sagewood Condominiums at Village Green, a condominium,


as recorded in the Kenosha County Register of Deeds office


as Document No. 1455410.


Tax Key No. 92-4-122-233-0311 THROUGH 92-4-122-233-0394


KEYSTONE CONDOMINIUMS


(TO REMAIN)


(TO REMAIN)


(TO REMAIN)


(TO REMAIN)


(TO REMAIN)


(TO REMAIN)


(TO REMAIN)


(TO REMAIN)


(TO BE TERMINATED)


(TO BE TERMINATED)


(TO BE TERMINATED)


(TO BE TERMINATED)


(PORTIONS TO


BE TERMINATED)



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

TF



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

TF



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

TF



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

TF



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

TF



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

TF



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

DESIGNED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVIEWED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAFTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

OF



AutoCAD SHX Text

JPK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASZ



AutoCAD SHX Text

ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

?



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

TF



AutoCAD SHX Text

w



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S







NE CORNER


LOT 2 C.S.M. NO. 2496


P.O.B.


C


1


C
2


C
3


C
4


C
5


C
6


C
7


C
8


C


9


C10


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


P
R


O
P


.


B
L
D


G
 
2


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


3


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
4


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


5


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


6


P
R


O
P


.


B
L
D


G
 
7


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


0


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


9


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


8


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


1


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


2


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


3


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


4


P


R


O


P


.
B


L


D


G


 


1


5


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 


1


6


P


R


O


P


.


B


L
D


G


 
1
7


P


R


O


P


.


B


L


D


G


 
1


8


PROPOSED DEDICATED


WOODLAND PROTECTION AND


PRESERVATION, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


PROPOSED DEDICATED


WOODLAND PROTECTION AND


PRESERVATION, ACCESS AND


MAINTENANCE EASEMENT


(100' PUBLIC R.O.W.)


4
7


T
H


 
A


V
E


N
U


E


NE CORNER


LOT 2 C.S.M. NO. 2496


P.O.B.


50' HIGHWAY SETBACK LINE


(
(
R


)
 
S


0
2
°
3
5
'
4
6
"
E


)


OUTLOT 4


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


LOT 211


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 12


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


104TH STR


STATE TRUNK HIG


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 C
U


R
B


CO
NCRETE C


URB


C


O


N


C


.
 
C


U


R


B


SITE BENCHMARK:


SW FLANGE BOLT


HYDRANT EL.=715.96


SITE BENCHMARK:


SW FLANGE BOLT


HYDRANT EL.=718.07


EDGE OF WATER


EL.=706.4


06/20/18


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


RIPRAP


GRAVEL


 
A


S


P


H


A


L


T


 
P


A


V


E


M


E


N


T


 A
S


P
H


A
L
T


 P
A


V
E


M
E


N
T


 A
SPHALT P


AVEM
ENT


1


2


3
4


5


6


7


8


9


18


19


16


15


14


13


12


11


10


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


28


29


30


27


31


32


33


34


35


36


37


38


39


40


41


42


43


44


45


46


47


48


49


52


50


53


61 62


54


64


55


60


57


59


65


66


63


67


68


69


79


78


82


80


81


77


75


76


70


71


72


73


74


83


84


85


86


87


88


89


90


93


91


92


94


95


96


97


98


99


100


101


102


103


105


106


107


104


112


111


110


109


108


113


114


115


116


132


121


118


131


133


127


124
120


119


123


126


125


122


128


129


130


134


135


136


137


138


139


140


141


142


143


144


145


146


147


152


151


150


149


148


153


155


154


156


157


158


159


160


161


163


164


165


166


167


181


168


180


179


169


170


171


172


174


173


177


176


175


178


MAIN STREET


POND 2


POND 1


C
O


N
C


R
E


T
E


 C
U


R
B


 M
E


D
IA


N


LOT 212


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 213


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 214


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 215


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 216


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 217


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 218


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS ADDITION 1


LOT 11


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


LOT 10


VILLAGE GREEN


HEIGHTS


EXISTING


BUILDING


EXISTING


BUILDING


(
6


6
'
 
P


U
B


L
I
C


 
R


.
O


.
W


.
)


GRAVEL


PLANT SCHEDULE


A/C


A/C


A/C


A/C


Trees to be removed


River Birch Multi-Trunk


(4)


Blue Star Juniper


(6)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(13)


Palace Purple Coralbells


(16)


Dense Yew


(3)


Endless Summer Hydrangea


(4)


(3)


Knock Out Rose


(11)


Max Frei Geranium


Karl Foerster Reed Grass


(6)


Dense Yew


(12)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(12)


Wine & Roses Weigela


(6)


Dwarf Burning Bush


(2)


Goldmound Spirea


(6)


(2)


Miss Kim Lilac


(12)


Palace Purple Coralbells


(6)


Blue Star Juniper


(10)


Zing Rose Maiden Pink Dianthus


(5)


Hicks Yew


River Birch Multi-Trunk


(4)


Blue Star Juniper


(6)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(13)


Palace Purple Coralbells


(16)


Dense Yew


(3)


Endless Summer Hydrangea


(4)


(3)


Knock Out Rose


(11)


Max Frei Geranium


May Night Salvia


(7)


Arrowwood Viburnum


(23)


River Birch Multi-Trunk


(1)


(3)


Black Hills Spruce


(3)


Cleveland Select Pear


(3)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(4)


Knock Out Rose


(3)


May Night Salvia


(5)


Hicks Yew


(3)


May Night Salvia


(4)


Goldflame Spirea


(3)


Palace Purple Coralbells


(6)


Goldmound Spirea


(2)


Dwarf Burning Bush


(12)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(6)


Wine & Roses Weigela


(12)


Dense Yew


(6)


Karl Foerster Reed Grass


Knock Out Rose


(4)


Stella de Oro Daylily


(3)


May Night Salvia


(6)


Hicks Yew


(5)


Palace Purple Coralbells


(3)


Goldflame Spirea


(4)


(2)


Miss Kim Lilac


(6)


Blue Star Juniper


(5)


Hicks Yew


(10)


Zing Rose Maiden Pink Dianthus


(12)


Palace Purple Coralbells


7530 288th AVENUE
SALEM, WISCONSIN 53168


(262) 537-2111   (262) 537-4080   (262) 843-3886
FAX (262) 537-3434


www.breezyhillnursery.com
email: contact@breezyhillnursery.com


Inc.


N96 W21627 COUNTY LINE ROAD
MENOMONEE FALLS, WISCONSIN 53051 Pleasant Prairie, WI


Keystone Condominiums Designed By Mike Schierl
Drawn By Kathy Feucht
Date January 23rd, 2019
Revised February 14th, 2019-kf 
Project #-003895


Sheet


L1
N


Conceptual Landscape Plan


Revised February 18th, 2019-kf 



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

DECIDUOUS TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME      CONT CAL SIZE   QTY BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME      CONT CAL SIZE   QTY CONT CAL SIZE   QTY CAL SIZE   QTY SIZE   QTY QTY Acer miyabei `State Street` / State Street Maple    B & B 2.5"Cal   10 B & B 2.5"Cal   10 2.5"Cal   10 10 Acer x freemanii `Jeffsred` / Autumn Blaze Maple    B & B 2.5"Cal   10 B & B 2.5"Cal   10 2.5"Cal   10 10 Betula nigra / River Birch Multi-Trunk      B & B 10`-12` ms   9 B & B 10`-12` ms   9 10`-12` ms   9 9 Celtis occidentalis `Chicagoland` / Chicagoland Hackberry  B & B 2.5"Cal   9 B & B 2.5"Cal   9 2.5"Cal   9 9 Gleditsia triacanthos `Skyline` / Skyline Honey Locust   B & B 2.5"Cal   10 B & B 2.5"Cal   10 2.5"Cal   10 10 Tilia americana `Redmond` / Redmond American Linden   B & B 2.5"Cal   10 B & B 2.5"Cal   10 2.5"Cal   10 10 Ulmus x `Frontier` / Frontier American Elm     B & B 2.5"Cal   9 B & B 2.5"Cal   9 2.5"Cal   9 9 



AutoCAD SHX Text

This plan as an instrument of service is the property of Breezy Hill Nursery, Inc. and may not be used in whole or part without our written consent.  Violators are subject to prosecution.



AutoCAD SHX Text

This plan as an instrument of service is the property of Breezy Hill Nursery, Inc. and may not be used in whole or part without our written consent.  Violators are subject to prosecution.



AutoCAD SHX Text

This plan as an instrument of service is the property of Breezy Hill Nursery, Inc. and may not be used in whole or part without our written consent.  Violators are subject to prosecution.



AutoCAD SHX Text

This plan as an instrument of service is the property of Breezy Hill Nursery, Inc. and may not be used in whole or part without our written consent.  Violators are subject to prosecution.



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

50



AutoCAD SHX Text

Scale 1" = 50'



pherrick

Line



pherrick

Line



pherrick

Line



pherrick

Line



pherrick

Line



pherrick

Line



pherrick

Line



pherrick

Line



pherrick

Line



pherrick

Typewritten Text

Existing Public SidewaysProposed Public Sidewalks



pherrick

Typewritten Text



pherrick

Typewritten Text



pherrick

Typewritten Text



pherrick

Typewritten Text

STH 165 (104th ST)



pherrick

Typewritten Text



pherrick

Typewritten Text











FRONT ELEVATION


REAR ELEVATION


LAKE COUNTRY


DESIGN STUDIO, LLC


A1


FRONT & REAR
EXTERIOR


ELEVATIONS


----


GLACIER RUN.
LLC.


N51 W17154 SHAGBARK RD.
MENOMONEE FALLS, WI


PH| ----
FAX| ----


- - - -


©


2016 GLACIER RUN. LLC.


PLEASANT PRAIRIE


----
----
----
----







RIGHT ELEVATION


LEFT ELEVATION


ROOF PLAN


·


LAKE COUNTRY


DESIGN STUDIO, LLC


A2


SIDE EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS -


ROOF PLAN


----


GLACIER RUN.
LLC.


N51 W17154 SHAGBARK RD.
MENOMONEE FALLS, WI


PH| ----
FAX| ----


- - - -


©


2016 GLACIER RUN. LLC.


PLEASANT PRAIRIE


----
----
----
----







GARAGE


KITCHEN
WOOD


OPENING PROFILE
DETAIL


GREAT ROOM
BOX TRAY CLG.


WOOD


COVERED
PORCH


M. BEDROOM
BOX TRAY CLG.


CARPET


DINETTE
WOOD


M.
BATH


TILE


LNDRY.
WOOD


FOYER
WOOD


PATIO


BEDROOM 2
CARPET


NICHE DETAIL


REAR
FOYER


WOOD


W.I.C.
CARPET


SUNROOM
CARPET


GARAGE


KITCHEN
WOOD


GREAT ROOM
BOX TRAY CLG.


WOOD


COVERED
PORCH


M. BEDROOM
BOX TRAY CLG.


CARPET


DINETTE
WOOD


M.
BATH


TILE


LNDRY.
WOOD


FOYER
WOOD


PATIO


BEDROOM 2
CARPET


REAR
FOYER


WOOD


W.I.C.
CARPET


SUNROOM
CARPET


FIRST FLOOR PLAN


·


·


·


·


·


·


·


·


·


·


LAKE COUNTRY


DESIGN STUDIO, LLC


A4


FIRST FLOOR PLAN


----


GLACIER RUN.
LLC.


N51 W17154 SHAGBARK RD.
MENOMONEE FALLS, WI


PH| ----
FAX| ----


- - - -


©


2016 GLACIER RUN. LLC.


PLEASANT PRAIRIE


----
----
----
----































































Consider approval of the following Ordinance Amendments (Ord. #19-24, Ord. #19-25 


and Ord. #19-26):  1) to amend Sections 420-26 thru 420-29 of the Village Zoning 


Ordinance related to zoning permit and application fees; 2) to amend Section 395-87 of the 


Village Land Division and Development Control Ordinance related development application 


fees; and to amend Section 420-131 T (3) of the Village Zoning Ordinance to indicate that 


upon final FEMA approval of a floodplain boundary adjustment the Village will set the 


required public hearing to amend the Village Zoning Map, Zoning Text and 2035 


Comprehensive Plan Amendment to reflect the approved amendment.   


Recommendation:  On August 12, 2019 the Plan Commission held a public hearing and 


recommended that the Village Board to approve the Ordinance amendments as presented in 


the August 19, 2019 Village staff report. 


 







2 
 


VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF AUGUST 19, 2019 


Consider approval of the following Ordinance Amendments (Ord. #19-24, Ord. #19-25 


and Ord. #19-26):  1) to amend Sections 420-26 thru 420-29 of the Village Zoning 


Ordinance related to zoning permit and application fees; 2) to amend Section 395-87 of the 


Village Land Division and Development Control Ordinance related development application 


fees; and to amend Section 420-131 T (3) of the Village Zoning Ordinance to indicate that 


upon final FEMA approval of a floodplain boundary adjustment the Village will set the 


required public hearing to amend the Village Zoning Map, Zoning Text and 2035 


Comprehensive Plan Amendment to reflect the approved amendment.   


 


The Village staff is recommending that Zoning and Development application fees be 


increased from $225 to $250 for minor applications such as a Certified Survey Map, Zoning 


Map Amendments and increase the fees from $825 to $850 for other applications including 


applications such as Site and Operational Plans, PUD Ordinances, Conceptual Plans and 


Plats.  The fees, after approved by the Village Board, would become effective on September 


1, 2019.  The current fees have remained unchanged since January 1, 2011. 


The other change to Section 420-131 T (3) of the Village Zoning Ordinance is to indicate 


that upon final FEMA approval of a floodplain boundary adjustment the Village will set the 


required public hearing to amend the Village Zoning Map, Zoning Text and 2035 


Comprehensive Plan Amendment to reflect the approved amendment. 


Plan Commission recommends approval of the Ordinance amendment as presented. 


 


CODE1907-001 
CODE1907-002 







ORD. #19-24 


ORDINANCE TO AMEND 


THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE (CHAPTER 420) 


RELATED TO ZONING PERMIT AND APPLICATION FEES  


IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 


KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DO HEREBY ORDAIN THAT ARTICLE V SECTIONS 


420-26 THRU 420-29 OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE BE AMENDED AS 


FOLLOWS: 


Article V 


420-26  Payment required.  


A. Any construction, site development, use, occupancy or other work requiring a 


permit, certificate, or approval under this chapter shall not be commenced, resumed 


or continued until all required approvals have been made and all permit fees as 


required by this chapter or any other Village ordinance shall be paid to the Village 


Treasurer. 


B. Whenever any construction, site development, use, occupancy or other work 


requiring a permit, certificate, or approval under this chapter is commenced, 


resumed or continued before such a permit or certificate is issued, the fee for 


reviewing and processing the application for such permit shall be tripled to take 


account of the added difficulty and time required to process the application. 


C. No refund of any application fee or other zoning fee or charges shall be made in the 


event that an application for a permit, certificate, or approval is withdrawn after the 


review and processing of such application has substantially commenced and charges 


have been incurred or an application has been denied. 


420-27  Application fees.  


A. An initial application fee of $225 $250 shall be paid when any of the following 


applications are submitted to the Village for review. This initial application fee covers 


the costs of preapplication staff conferences with the applicant and his 


representatives, site visits if necessary, providing copies of applications and related 


ordinances, and telephone calls with the applicant related to the Village requirements 


for the proposed project prior to submitting the application. In addition, the fees 


contained in Subsection C below shall also be paid for the processing and reviewing 


of the application. See also § 420-29H below for additional fees, as applicable, for 


the review of the following applications: 


(1) (Reserved)  


(2) Zoning Map/zoning text amendment applications, excluding planned unit 


developments and planned developments. 


(3) Zoning variance application. 


(4) Wetland staking application. 


(5) Conditional use permit application. 


(6) Floodplain boundary adjustment or Floodplain Map correction applications 


B. An initial application fee of $825 $850 shall be paid when any of the following 


applications are submitted to the Village for review. This initial application fee covers 


the costs of preapplication staff conferences with the applicant and his 







representatives, site visits if necessary, providing copies of applications and related 


ordinances, and telephone calls with the applicant related to the Village requirements 


for the proposed project prior to submitting the application. In addition, the fees 


contained in Subsection C below shall also be paid for the processing and reviewing 


of the application. See also § 420-29H below for additional fees, as applicable, for 


the review of the following applications:’ 


(1) Site and operational plan application that requires Plan Commission review. 


(2) Joint applications for site and operational plan and conditional use 


applications. 


(3) PUD, planned unit development overlay text and map amendments. 


(4) PD, planned development text and map amendments. 


(5) Site and operational plan appeal. 


(6) Motion to reconsider a site and operational plan appeal. 


(7) Appeals application or motion to reconsider a zoning variance or appeal. 


(8) Floodplain boundary adjustment or Floodplain Map correction applications 


(including Zoning Text and Map Amendment and Amendments to the 


Comprehensive Land Use Plan). 


C.  Predevelopment agreement. In addition to application fees specified above in 


Subsections A and B, the applicant(s) and/or property owner(s) shall agree to be 


responsible for paying for the Village staff (planners, zoning administrators, 


engineers, and GIS employees) actual time spent and resources required for the 


processing and reviewing of the application. As a condition of submitting the 


application, the applicant(s) and property owner(s) would enter into a 


predevelopment agreement with the Village which specifies, at a minimum, the 


property owner's name, address, and telephone and facsimile numbers, the 


applicant's name, address, and telephone and facsimile numbers, the type of 


application, current billable rates to be used for review of the application, the 


address, legal description and tax parcel number of the property(ies), and where and 


to whom invoices shall be sent. If the person is not the owner of the property, then a 


copy of the invoice will also be sent to the owner of the property. 


(1) The Village shall mail said invoices on a monthly basis to the specified person. 


All invoices shall be paid within 30 days. There is a penalty of 1.5% per 


month on the unpaid invoice balance, and there is an additional ten-percent 


penalty if the outstanding invoice, interest and penalty are placed on the tax 


roll (a lien against the property). The right of the Village to assess a lien 


against the property shall be one of the remedies available to the Village but 


shall not be the exclusive remedy. The Village may also sue for a money 


judgment for any invoices which are past due. Furthermore, if an invoice 


becomes past due for more than 30 days, the Village may elect to terminate 


all staff review and to terminate the Village approval process on the 


application until all delinquent invoices are fully paid. 


(2)  The Village shall invoice and the applicant/property owner(s) shall pay for the 


staff billable time and costs spent for processing and reviewing the plans, 


specifications, drawings and other documents submitted with respect to the 


proposed application, specific plans, plats, and maps for the development or 


project; for preparing memorandums and letters; for preparing, mailing, 


faxing, e-mailing and publishing meeting notices and agendas; for meetings, 







telephone calls and e-mails with the applicants, agents, developers, property 


owners, officials and-neighbors; and inspecting the site/building/projects. 


Billable time includes preparing reports and documents for the Village Plan 


Commission, Village Park Commission, Village Board of Appeals, or Village 


Board and any other Village staff time expended to review or analyze the 


applications, specific plans, plats, maps or development plans. Other charges 


included in the billable hours and costs are associated with: 


(a)  Preparing and publishing Village Municipal Code text and map 


amendments for the referenced application(s) from the Village's 


consultant. (Note: Invoices from the Village's General Code consultant 


are typically sent semiannually, which often results in a time delay in 


sending final invoices from the Village to the owner/applicant); 


(b)  The Village staff seeking expert advice in meetings and reviewing and 


preparing correspondence regarding the specific plans, plats, maps, 


development plans or project, such as, but not limited to, the Village's 


attorney, environmental consultant, or architectural consultant 


expertise; and 


(c)  Requests from the agent/developer/property owners in gathering 


additional information; preparing GIS mapping; reviewing materials; 


preparing meetings, documents, letters, e-mails and other 


correspondence; and researching information for existing or 


speculative development proposals to assure that the proposed 


applications, specific plans, plats, maps, development plans, Digital 


Security Imaging System (DSIS) plans, reviews and inspection or 


project details are in compliance with the applicable Village, county, 


state or federal ordinances, rules and regulations and any approved 


plans or specifications. 


(3)  The Village shall continue to invoice the applicant/property owner until final 


consideration is made regarding said application and all conditions have been 


satisfied, preconstruction meetings are held and inspections have been 


completed or said application is withdrawn in writing by the 


applicant/property owner(s). All invoices and all Village staff time and 


resources spent prior to the date of the written request to terminate the 


application shall be paid by the applicant/property owner(s). 


(4)  The Zoning Administrator may allow a cash deposit to be accepted by the 


Village to pay the invoiced amounts in lieu of sending an invoice to be paid. A 


predevelopment agreement is still required. 


D.  All complete applications as specified in Subsections A and B above that have been 


received and are currently being processed by the Village on or before January 31, 


2004, will not be subject to the fees specified in Subsections A, B and C above. Any 


application as specified in Subsections A and B above received on or after February 


1, 2004, will be subject to said fees. To further clarify, any application(s) received for 


new projects or projects which require multiple applications for final approval and 


which are processed on or after February 1, 2004, will be subject to said fees. 


E. Other application fees. 


(1)  An application fee of $100 shall be paid when any of the following applications 


are submitted to the Village for review. This application fee covers the costs 


of preapplication staff conferences with the applicant and his representatives, 


site visits if necessary, providing copies of applications and related 







ordinances, and telephone calls with the applicant related to the Village 


requirements for the proposed project prior to submitting the application. 


(a)  A minor amendment to a site and operational plan previously approved 


by the Plan Commission. 


(b)  Extension of site and operational plan approval that required Plan 


Commission approval. 


(c)  Site and operational plan application that requires staff review only. 


(d)  Stipulated shoreland permit application. 


(2)  (Reserved) 


420-28  Zoning permit and sign fees.  


A.  The following zoning review and inspection permit fees shall be paid to the 


Village Treasurer at the time any such permit is approved: 


(1)  New single-family building: $125 per building. 


(2)  New two-family building: $150 per building. 


(3)  New multiple-family building: $200 per building. 


(4)  New principal commercial, industrial, governmental or institutional 


structure or building: $200 per structure or building. 


(5)  Additions or alterations to any dwelling unit or early footing and 


foundation: $50 per structure or building. 


(6)  Residential or agricultural accessory structure or building, including but 


not limited to an attached or detached garage, shed, pole barn, deck, 


porch, sport court, swimming pool, hot tub, or residential 


communication structure: $50 per structure or building. 


(7)  Addition or alteration to an existing commercial, industrial, 


governmental or institutional structure or building: $125 per structure 


or building. 


(8)  Commercial, industrial, governmental or institutional tenant change 


(without alterations) or an accessory structure or building (excluding 


fences) or early footing and foundation: $50 per structure or building. 


(9)  Any residential or commercial fence: $50. 


(10)  Any driveway (new, extend or replace): $50 per entrance. 


B.  Sign fees: 


(1)  Sign application: $20 per sign, not to exceed $140 per application, 


including temprary temporary signs: 


(2)  Sign special exception permit application: $25 per sign, not to exceed 


$175 per application. 


(3)  Freestanding sign permit: $55 per sign for first two signs plus $15 for 


each additional sign. No sign permit fee for any of the following 


temporary signs: coming soon sign, community banner sign, special 


event sign or device, or temporary banner sign. 


(4)  Nonfreestanding sign or changing the display area of an existing 


freestanding sign: $40 per sign for first five signs plus $10 for each 







additional sign. No sign permit fee for any of the following temporary 


signs: coming soon sign, community banner sign, special event sign or 


device, or temporary banner sign. 


420-29  Other fees.   Other fees are established as follows: 


A. Business license: 


(1)  Initial application: 


(a)  Per business per site: $25. 


(b)  Per nonprofit business per site: $10. 


(2)  Annual renewal application: 


(a)  Per business per site: $25. 


(b)  Per nonprofit business per site: $10. 


(3)  Annual renewal late fee: If the business fails to renew the license by January 


15 of each year, then a late fee of $10 will be assessed to the applicant. 


(4)  Notice of change: 


(a)  Per business per site: $25. 


(b)  Per nonprofit business per site: $10. 


(5)  The Village may require additional information for verification of any nonprofit 


status. 


B.  Zoning information request: $100 per parcel. 


C.  Parcel information/review letter: $155 per parcel. 


D.  Release of waiver or other similar document: $100 plus recording fees. 


E.  Performance bond or cash deposit to ensure compliance with permit inspection 


conditions and an administrative processing fee: $100 per site.  


F.  Stipulated conservancy permit: $100 and renewal fee of $50 only if the application 


or management plan has not changed for the original permit. 


G.  Recording fees: actual cost to record a document at the Kenosha County Register of 


Deeds office plus a Village administrative processing fee of $10. 


H.  Special fees. The applicant/property owner shall pay to the Village Treasurer, upon 


presentment of an itemized statement, a fee equal to the actual cost incurred by the 


Village for all engineering, attorney and/or other special expert consultation or 


review conducted by or on behalf of the Village in connection with the review of an 


application or request for information; meeting with the applicant/property owner of 


a project or other engineering, attorney and/or special expert consultation or review 


services; or review, meeting, research of information for speculative development 


proposals incurred by the Community Development Department as the Village 


Zoning Administrator, Plan Commission and/or the Village Board may deem 


necessary to assure that the proposed application or existing plans or request is in 


compliance with the provisions of this chapter and the approved plans and 


specifications. 


I.  Temporary use permit: $150 per application; if a minor agreement is required, then 


the fee is $250 per application. 


J.   Commercial communication structure application and permit. 







(1)  A Class 1 co-location or the siting and construction of a new mobile service 


support structure and facilities: application fee of $2,500 to be submitted at 


the time the application is filed, and a permit fee of $500. 


(2)  A Class 2 co-location or any other modifications to a mobile service facility not 


classified as a substantial modification: application fee of $100 to be 


submitted at the time the application is filed, and a permit fee of $40 $125. 


K.  Any fee paid by credit card to the Village will be charged an additional finance fee for 


processing the transaction. 


 


All fee changes in this ordinance shall be effective on September 1, 2019. 


Adopted this 19th day of August 2019. 


 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


ATTEST:  


  


John P. Steinbrink 


Village President 


  


Jane C. Snell 


Village Clerk 


 


Posted:    


 
24-zoning fee changes 
CODE1907-001 







ORD. #19-25 


ORDINANCE TO AMEND 


THE VILLAGE LAND DIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL ORDINANCE 


(CHAPTER 395) RELATED TO DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION FEES  


IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 


KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DO HEREBY ORDAIN THAT SECTION 395-87 OF 


THE VILLAGE LAND DIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL ORDINANCE BE 


AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


 


395-87   Application and development review fees.  


A.  An initial application fee of $825 $850 shall be paid when any of the following 


applications or requests are submitted to the Village. This initial application fee 


covers the costs of preapplication staff conferences with the applicant and his 


representatives, site visits if necessary, providing copies of applications and related 


ordinances, and telephone calls with the applicant related to the Village requirements 


for the proposed project prior to submitting the application or request. In addition, 


the fees contained in Subsection C below shall also be paid for the processing and 


reviewing of the application. See also Subsection E below for additional fees, as 


applicable, for the following applications: 


(1)  Conceptual plan. 


(2)  Preliminary plat. 


(3)  Preliminary condominium plat. 


(4)  Final plat. 


(5) Final condominium plat. 


(6)  Assessor's plat. 


(7)  Development agreements, memorandums or other agreements not associated 


with a plat or certified survey map. 


(8)  Amendment to an existing development agreement or other existing 


agreement. 


(9)  Assignment of development agreement. 


B.  An initial application fee of $225 $250 shall be paid when any of the following 


applications or requests are submitted to the Village. This initial application fee 


covers the costs of preapplication staff conferences with the applicant and his 


representatives, site visits if necessary, providing copies of applications and related 


ordinances, and telephone calls with the applicant related to the Village requirements 


for the proposed project prior to submitting the application or request. In addition, 


the fees contained in Subsection C below shall also be paid for the processing and 


reviewing of the application. See also Subsection E below for additional fees, as 


applicable, for the following applications: 


(1)  Comprehensive plan amendment. 


(2)  Neighborhood sketch plan or amendment thereto. 


(3)  Certified survey map, or affidavit of correction thereto. 







(4)  Lot line adjustment, or affidavit of correction thereto. 


(5)  Variance. 


(6)  Street, walkway or park vacation. 


(7)  Vacation of a plat. 


(8)  Affidavit to change a plat or CSM requirement. 


(9)  Vacation of a Village easement. 


(10)  Deed restrictions/covenants/assignments or other development documents to 


prepare or review. 


C.  Predevelopment agreement: In addition to the application fee as specified in 


Subsections A and B above, the divider/developer and the property owner shall be 


responsible for paying for the actual Village staff time spent and resources required 


for processing and reviewing of the application. As a condition of submitting the 


application or request, the divider/developer and the property owner(s) shall enter 


into a predevelopment agreement with the Village which specifies, at a minimum, 


the property owner's name, address, and telephone and facsimile numbers, the 


applicant's name, address, and telephone and facsimile numbers, the type of 


application, current billable rates to be used for review of the application, the 


address, legal description and tax parcel number of the property, and where and to 


whom invoices shall be sent. 


(1)  The Village shall mail invoices on a monthly basis to the specified person. All 


invoices shall be paid within 30 days. There is a penalty of 1.5% per month 


on the unpaid invoice balance, and there is an additional penalty of 10% if the 


outstanding invoice, interest and penalty are placed on the tax roll (a lien 


against the property). The right of the Village to assess a lien against the 


property shall be one of the remedies available to the Village but shall not be 


the exclusive remedy. The Village may also sue for a money judgment for any 


invoices which are past due. Furthermore, if an invoice becomes past due for 


more than 30 days, the Village may elect to terminate all staff review and to 


terminate the Village approval process on the application until all delinquent 


invoices are fully paid. 


(2)  The Village shall invoice and the applicant/property owner(s) shall pay for the 


staff billable time and costs spent for processing and reviewing the plans, 


specifications, drawings and other documents submitted with respect to the 


proposed application, specific plans, plats, and maps for the development or 


project; for preparing memorandums and letters; for preparing, mailing, 


faxing, emailing and publishing meeting notices and agendas; and for 


meetings, telephone calls and emails with the applicant, agents, developers, 


property owners, officials and neighbors. Billable time includes preparing 


reports and documents for the Village Plan Commission, Zoning Board of 


Appeals or the Village Board, and any other Village staff time expended to 


review or analyze the application, specific plans, plats, maps or development 


plans. Other charges included in the billable hours and costs are associated 


with: 


(a)  Preparing and publishing Village municipal code text and map 


amendments for the referenced application from the Village's 


consultant. (Note: Invoices from the Village's General E-Code 


consultant are typically sent semi-annually, which often results in a 







time delay in sending final invoices from the Village to the 


owner/applicant.); 


(b)  The Village staff seeking expert advice in meetings and reviewing and 


preparing correspondence regarding the specific plans, plats, maps, 


development plans or project, such as, but not limited to the Village's 


Attorney, Environmental Consultant, or Architectural Consultant 


expertise; and 


(c)  requests from the agent/developer/property owners in gathering 


additional information; preparing GIS mapping; reviewing materials; 


preparing meetings, letters, emails and other correspondence; and 


researching information and for existing or speculative development 


proposals to assure that the proposed application, specific plans, plats, 


maps, development plans or project are in compliance with the 


applicable Village, county, state or federal ordinances, rules and 


regulations and any approved plans or specifications. 


(3)  The Village shall continue to invoice the divider/developer or property 


owner(s) until final consideration is made regarding said application and all 


related activities related to the application have been completed, 


preconstruction meetings have been held and inspections have been 


completed or said application is withdrawn in writing by the 


applicant/property owner. All invoices and all staff time and resources spent 


prior to the date of the written request to terminate the application shall be 


paid by the divider/developer or property owner. 


D.  All complete applications on file with the Village as specified in Subsections A and B 


above that have been received and are currently being processed by the Village on 


or before January 31, 2004, will not be subject to the fees specified in Subsections A, 


B and C above. To further clarify, for developments that are in the Village's land 


division and development review process and require multiple applications for final 


approval, the next application submitted on or after February 1, 2004, will be subject 


to said fees. 


E.  Special fees. The divider/developer and property owner shall pay to the Village 


Treasurer, upon presentment of an itemized statement, a fee equal to the actual cost 


incurred by the Village for all engineering, attorney and/or other special expert 


consultation or review conducted by or on behalf of the Village in connection with the 


review of an application or request for information; meeting with the 


owner/developer/applicant of a project or other engineering, attorney and/or special 


expert consultation or review services; or review, meeting, research of information 


for speculative development proposals incurred by the Community Development 


Department as the Village Zoning Administrator, Plan Commission and/or the Village 


Board may deem necessary to assure that the proposed application or existing plans 


or request are in compliance with the provisions of this chapter and the approved 


plans and specifications. 


F.  Other fees. 


(1)  An application fee of $225 $250 shall be paid when any of the following 


requests for a time extension to satisfy the requirements of approval is 


requested: 


(a)  Conceptual plan. 


(b)  Preliminary plat. 







(c)  Preliminary condominium plat. 


(d)  Final plat. 


(e)  Final condominium plat. 


(f)  Assessor's plat. 


(2)  An application fee of $50 shall be paid when any of the following requests for 


a time extension to satisfy the requirements of approval is requested: 


(a)  Certified survey map. 


(b)  Lot line adjustment. 


(3)  The following application fees An application fee of $50 shall be paid when 


any of the following requests are made: 


(a)  Street light (installed or removed). Lot line adjustment, or affidavit of 


correction thereto:  $250. 


(b)  Address correction or change pursuant to Chapter 305: $50. 


All fee changes in this ordinance shall be effective on September 1, 2019. 


Adopted this 19th day of August 2019. 


 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


ATTEST:  


  


John P. Steinbrink 


Village President 


  


Jane C. Snell 


Village Clerk 


 


Posted:    


 
25-ld fee changes 
CODE1907-002 







ORD. #19-26 


ORDINANCE TO AMEND 


THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE (CHAPTER 420) 


TO CLARIFY MAP AND TEXT CHANGES UPON FINAL APPROVAL OF FEMA RELATED 


TO A CHANGE OF A FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY  


IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


 


THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 


KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DO HEREBY ORDAIN THAT SECTION 420-131 T 


(3) OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


 


(3)  Procedures. Amendments to this section, including text amendments, floodplain map 


amendments relating to the boundary of the floodplain or floodway, or amendments 


to the regional flood profiles, may be made upon petition of any interested party in 


accordance with the provisions of § 420-13 of this chapter. Additionally, the following 


requirements shall apply, and in the event of any conflict between the provisions of 


this Subsection T and § 420-13, the requirements of this subsection shall be 


controlling: 


(a)  Any amendment proposed shall be submitted to the Village with the 


completed application, all required information and materials and the required 


fee. 


(b)  Upon receipt of a completed application, the Village will set a date for the 


public hearing a minimum of 30 days from the date such completed 


application was received. Copies of the proposed amendment and notice of 


the public hearing shall be submitted to the DNR for review prior to the 


hearing, and a Class 2 notice shall be published. 


(c)  The Village Plan Commission shall hold a public hearing and make a 


recommendation to the Village Board. 


(d)  Upon receiving Village Board approval for the floodplain boundary 


amendment, DNR approval, a FEMA conditional approval (if applicable), and 


an erosion control permit, the petitioner may proceed with any cut and fill 


project. 


(e)  Upon completion of the work, an as-built grading plan and supporting 


documentation certified and stamped by a Wisconsin registered and licensed 


profession engineer shall be submitted to the Village to verify compliance will 


all approvals.  Upon receipt of the final approval from FEMA, the required 


public hearings shall be set to amend the Village Zoning Map, Zoning Text 


and 2035 Comprehensive Plan Amendment to reflect the approved 


amendment.   


(f)  In the case of floodplain boundary corrections based on actual field surveys, a 


certified plat of survey or site plan providing detailed data which precisely 


delineates the actual floodplain limits compared to the existing floodplain lines 


as identified on the corresponding official floodplain overlay maps shall be 


provided. 


(g)  No amendment to the maps or text of this section shall become effective until 


reviewed and approved by state and federal agencies as required by law. 







(h)  All persons petitioning for a map amendment that obstructs flow, causing any 


increase in the regional flood height, shall obtain flooding easements or other 


appropriate legal arrangements from all adversely affected property owners 


and provide copies of said legal arrangements before the amendment can be 


approved by the Village. 


Adopted this 19th day of August 2019. 


 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


ATTEST:  


  


John P. Steinbrink 


Village President 


  


Jane C. Snell 


Village Clerk 


 


Posted:    


 
26-fpo amend clarification 
CODE1907-001 







  


 


 


 
 
RIGHT OF RECOVERY AND FUNDING  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE  
OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE AND CREEKSIDE MF, LLC 
FOR THE PUBLIC WATER MAIN  
EXTENSION IN OLD GREEN BAY ROAD 


Return to  
Village of Pleasant Prairie 
9915 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 


Tax Parcel Number(s) 
92-4-122-153-2801 
92-4-122-153-2802 
92-4-122-153-2803 
 


Legal Description:  The property is identified as Lots #1, 2, and 3 of Certified Survey Map 
#2898 and recorded as Document # 1842508, which is located in the Southwest ¼, of U.S. 
Public Land Survey Section 15, Township 1 North, Range 22 East in the Forth Principal 
Meridian in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. 


 


An Agreement made this ____ day of _____________, 2019 by and between the VILLAGE 
OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, a municipal corporation existing 
under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Wisconsin and with its offices located at 9915 
39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158, hereinafter referred to as "the Village", and 
Creekside MF, LLC a Wisconsin Limited Liability Company with a business address of 4011 
80th Street, Kenosha, WI 53142, hereinafter referred to as the "the Developer". 


 
 WITNESSETH 


1. That to facilitate the availability of required public water main improvements, the 
Village has authorized the Developer to undertake the extension of public water 
system improvements in Old Green Bay Road to serve The Vista at Creekside 
development.  Plans for the pubic water main extension are on file with the Village 
Clerk.  Upon completion of construction and acceptance by the Village, the 
referenced public water system improvements will be made available to serve other 
parcels within the Village located on the east side of Old Green Bay Road as 
referenced in paragraph five (5) below. 


2. That in return for the Village’s approval of the construction of the aforesaid public 
water system improvements, the Developer has agreed to pay the full cost thereof of 
the public water main system improvements, which sum is expected to be over and 
above that portion of the cost properly chargeable to the Developer. 


3. That Chapter 395-74. J. (3) of the Village’s Land Division and Development Control 
Ordinance sets forth an Alternative Conditional Approval provision wherein the 
Village agrees to pay the Developer a fair share of the total cost of certain specified 
monies which may be subsequently recovered by the Village with respect to such 
extended public water system improvements.  Such recoverable amount payable 







Right of Recovery and Funding Agreement 


Old Green Bay Road Public Water Main System Improvements 
 


from the Village to the developer, referred to as a Right of Recovery amount is 
contingent upon the Village first recovering specified costs incurred by Village in 
connection with such public water main system improvements. 


4. That the Developer, upon the Village Board of Trustees’ adoption of the Preliminary 
Resolution #19-16 on May 20, 2019 and Final Resolution #19-27 on August 19, 
2019 (Exhibit A) regarding the detailed deferred special assessment amounts for 
this project and the execution of this Right of Recovery and Funding Agreement by 
both parties, shall have funding and right of recovery rights as to a portion of said 
sums as hereinafter set forth. 


5. That if the users or property owners of the Lots shown in Exhibit A access or connect 
to the referenced public water system improvements, utilize the referenced public 
water main system improvements or as a pre-condition of a land division approval, 
whichever occurs first, then said users or property owners shall be required to pay a 
special assessment equal to a certain portion of the total cost of such public water 
main system improvements which is proportional to the cost of the improvements to 
the tax parcel numbers as computed and delineated by the Developer's project 
engineers, approved by the Village’s Engineer and as set forth in Exhibit A. The 
Village does herewith agree and bind itself to pay to the Developer a portion of such 
special assessments with no interest accrual as the same are collected but, in no 
event, not to exceed thirty four thousand, six hundred fifty one dollars and .48/100 
($34,651.48) from the owners as outlined in Exhibit A. 


6. It is further understood and agreed that the Developer shall have absolutely no right 
to recover, and the Village shall have absolutely no obligation whatever to repay, any 
public water system amounts collected by the Village for such special assessments 
after August 19, 2029. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Developer and the Village have caused this Agreement 
to be signed and dated as of this ____ day of ___________, 2019. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Signatures are on the next pages. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Right of Recovery and Funding Agreement 


Old Green Bay Road Public Water Main System Improvements 
 


DEVELOPER/OWNER: CREEKSIDE MF, LLC 
 
By: Creekside MF, LLC, Managing Member 
By: Bear Development, LLC, Authorized Member 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Stephen R. Mills, Authorized Member 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 


)SS: 
KENOSHA COUNTY  ) 
 
 
The above named Stephen R. Mills came before me this ____ day of _________, 2019 in 
Kenosha, WI, to me known to be the Managing Member of Creekside MF, LLC and 
Authorized Member of Bear Development LLC, who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged that he executed the same as the Authorized Member of Creekside MF, LLC 
by its authority. 
 
 
 


____________________________________________ 
                (Notary Signature) 


 
Print Name:  _____________________________________ 
 
Notary Public _____________________ County, _________. 
 
My Commission expires: _____________________________ 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


[Additional signatures on the next page.]  
 
 
 
 
 
 







Right of Recovery and Funding Agreement 


Old Green Bay Road Public Water Main System Improvements 
 


 
 
 
 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE                                 
 
By:  _____________________________  
        John P. Steinbrink          
        Village President     
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _____________________________  
      Jane C. Snell 
      Village Clerk      
 
 
 


STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 


                          )SS: 
KENOSHA COUNTY  ) 
 
This Agreement was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ________, 2019 in Pleasant 
Prairie, WI by John P. Steinbrink, Village President and Jane C. Snell, Village Clerk of the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie. 
 
 


___________________________________________ 
   (Notary Signature) 


 
Print Name:  _____________________________________ 
 
Notary Public __________________________ County, ___.  
 
Commission expires: ______________________________. 


 
 


 
 
 
This Agreement Drafted By: 
Jean M. Werbie-Harris 
Community Development Director 
Village of Pleasant Prairie 
9915 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 







Consider the request of Bride Purtillo of MPC Property Management on behalf of the 


Meadowlands Homeowners Association for approval of the Third Amendment to the 


Declaration of Restrictions of the Meadowland Subdivision. 


Recommendation:  Village staff recommends approval of the Third Amendment as 


presented at the August 19, 2019 Village Board meeting subject to recording the 


amendment at the Kenosha County Register of Deeds and providing a recorded copy to the 


Village within 30 days of Village Board approval. 


 







MIL-28743563-1


THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE 
DECLARATION OF


RESTRICTIONS 


Record this document with the 
Register of Deeds


MEADOWLANDS SUBDIVISION


Name and Return Address:
Lydia J. Chartre, Esq.
Husch Blackwell LLP
20800 Swenson Dr., Suite 300
Waukesha, WI 53186


See Exhibit B
   (Parcel Identification Number)


Meadowlands Subdivision was created by a Declaration of Restrictions, Covenants, and 
Easements recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Kenosha County, Wisconsin, on 
the 28th day of August, 2000, as Document No. 1192068 (the “Declaration”), and amended by 
the First Amendment to Declaration of Restrictions, recorded in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds for Kenosha County, Wisconsin, on the 5th day of October, 2001, as Document No. 
1237586, and as further amended by the Second Amendment to Declaration of Restrictions,
recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Kenosha County, Wisconsin, on the 5th day of
October, 2001, as Document No. 1237589;


WHEREAS, the owners of the Lots in Meadowlands Subdivision (“Lot Owners”), pursuant to 
the rights reserved in Article VIII, Section 8.1 of the Declaration, desire to amend the 
Declaration provisions;


WHEREAS, the Developer did not fulfill its stated intention to develop the Property into 27 
single family lots and 12 two family (duplex) lots; rather, the Property currently consists of 27 
single family lots only;


NOW THEREFORE, the Lot Owners hereby amend the Declaration as follows:







MIL-28743563-1


Section 1.6 shall be deleted in its entirety, as shown by the strikeout language below:


1.6 "Two Family Lot" shall mean and refer to any plot of land shown upon any recorded 
subdivision or land division map or any certified survey map of the Property included in the Two 
Family (Duplex) section of the Property, with the exception of Common Areas.


Section 1.7 shall be amended by deleting the strikeout language to read as follows: 


1.7 "Lot" shall mean and refer to any plot of land shown upon any recorded subdivision or 
land division map or any certified survey map of the Property including Single Family Lots and 
Two Family Lots, with the exception of Common Areas.


Section 1.8 shall be amended by deleting the strikeout language to read as follows: 


1.8 "Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or 
entities, of the fee simple title to any Lot, whether a Single Family Lot or a Two Family Lot, as
the case may be; except that as to any Lot which is the subject of a land contract wherein the
purchaser is in possession, the terms, "Owner" shall refer to such person instead of the vendor.


Section 3.4B shall be deleted in its entirety, as shown by the strikeout language below:


3.4B. Dwelling Size. Two Family Lots (Duplex): No dwelling shall be erected on any
Two Family Lot having a ground area within the perimeter of the main building, at or above 
finish grade elevation (exclusive of garages, porches, patios, breezeways and similar additions),
measured along the exterior walls, of less than the following areas:


(a) Not less than 1,350 square feet per unit for a one-story dwelling;
(b) Not less than 1,550 square feet per unit for a split-level,
(c) Not less than 1,550 square feet per unit for a two story dwelling,
(d) With respect to all other types of two family dwellings, not less than such
areas, determined by the ACC, as are consistent with the foregoing and
with other provisions hereof.


Section 3.7(c) shall be amended by deleting the strikeout language and inserting the underlined
language to read as follows:


(c) Developer has constructed a berm of varying heights surrounding the property and 
delineated on the plat as a Restricted Planting, Landscape Area and Vehicle Non- Access Area. 
An easement coextensive with these areas and contained on the above- mentioned Lots (also as 
shown on the final plat) has been dedicated, given, granted, and conveyed to the Association, as 
designated on the final plat for purpose of access to and maintenance of such areas which are to 
be used for the planting and installing of trees, shrubs and other landscape materials and all 
related ingress and egress, grading, replacement, alteration and maintenance activities. These 
easements shall be exclusive except for the coextensive easements granted on the final plat and 







MIL-28743563-1


other future roadway, street, driveway or other such use as approved by the Village. These areas 
within the Property shall be landscaped in accordance with the Master Landscaping Plan by the 
Developer (the Master Landscaping Plan is on file with the Village and is made a part of this 
Declaration); however the failure of the Developer to do so shall not relieve any Lot Owner of 
the obligations imposed by this covenant set forth herein and as also contained on the final plat. 
Upon completion of the installation of trees, shrubs and other landscaping materials, no vehicular 
access through or over such area shall be permitted except as permitted by the Village for 
roadway, street, driveway or other such uses as agreed upon by the Village and Developer. After 
the trees, shrubs and other landscaping materials have been planted and installed in such areas, 
the Association shall maintain the planting and landscaped areas (which maintenance shall 
include without limitation: watering, mowing grass, weeding, removing trash and debris, 
trimming trees and shrubs and replacing dead or dying plant materials) in accordance with the 
Master Landscaping Plan as an aesthetically pleasing landscaped screening area. The Association 
and its Members shall be bound by the above mentioned covenants and the easements, 
dedications and restrictive covenants as are contained in the final plat forever. Notwithstanding 
such easements and dedications, the Village shall have no obligation to exercise its rights with
respect to the above-mentioned areas. The obligations contained within this section and as
imposed by the final plat shall run with the land, shall be binding upon the Developer, its
successors, assigns and successors in title, in their capacity as Owners of any of the Lots or
portion thereof and shall benefit and be enforceable by the Village and the Association. The
Developer, its successors, assigns and successors-in-title thereof shall be relieved of any
maintenance obligations they may have as Owners of any such Lots or portion thereof only to
the extent that the Association performs the required maintenance functions to the satisfaction
of the Village.


Each and every Owner of a Single Family Lot or Two Family (Duplex) Lot shall be
responsible for the cost of installing the required landscaping on their Lot in accordance with a
detailed landscaping plan which has been reviewed and approved, in writing, by the ACC and
in accordance with the Landscape Standards attached and made a part hereto in conjunction
with the construction of the dwelling on the Lot. The landscape plan shall include, but not be
limited to, plant location, common and botanical names of plant material, planting size, root
condition, and quantity of all plant material. The plan shall also show all ground cover,
including size and caliper of plant materials, mulch areas, landscape, construction materials and
construction details.


The Owners of Lots abutting the berms may install and maintain additional landscaping 
on the interior side of those berms created within the Restricted Planting, Landscape and Vehicle 
-Access Area on their Lot provided that the Owner shall be solely responsible for maintaining
landscaping not originally placed by Developer or the Association. Prior to any additional 
landscaping on such berms, an Owner must have the landscape plan approved by the ACC and
the Village. The Association shall have the obligation of maintaining (which maintenance shall
include without limitation watering, mowing grass, weeding, removing trash and debris,
trimming trees and shrubs and replacing dead or dying plant materials) the landscaping elements
in any and all cul-de-sac islands and in the entry islands in accordance with the Master
Landscaping Plan approved by the Village. The obligations contained within this section and as
imposed by the final plat shall run with the land, shall be binding upon the Developer, its







MIL-28743563-1


successors, assigns and successors in title, in their capacity as Owners of any of the Lots or
portion thereof and shall benefit and be enforceable by the Village along with the Association.
The Developer, its successors, assigns and successors-in-title thereof shall be relieved of any
maintenance obligations they may have as Owners of any such Lot or portion thereof only to the
extent that the Association performs the required maintenance functions to the satisfaction of the
Village. The Association Owners shall be responsible for the maintenance (which maintenance 
shall include without limitation watering, mowing grass, weeding removing trash and debris, 
trimming trees and shrubs and replacing dead or dying plant materials) of the street trees 
contained within the area between the roadway and the Owners’ Lots, as well as any other trees 
on the Owners’ Lots. The Village shall have no maintenance obligations with respect to the street 
trees.


Section 3.16 shall be amended by deleting the strikeout language and inserting the underlined
language to read as follows:


3.16 Mailboxes. Each Single Family Lot Owner and Two Family Lot Owner shall be 
required to purchase a mailbox from the Association.  The cost of the mailbox shall be $____ 
which shall be paid by the initial Owner at closing.  The Owner shall be responsible for installing 
the mailbox at a location selected and approved by the ACC to insure harmony and appearance 
throughout the Property.  The Association Owner shall be responsible for maintaining, repairing, 
and replacing said mailbox.  Should replacement of the mailbox become necessary, the Owner 
must first obtain the written consent of the ACC for the replacement mailbox, to insure continued 
harmony of appearance throughout the Property.


Section 4.1 shall be amended by deleting the strikeout language as follows:


4.1 Membership. Each Single Family Lot Owner and Two Family Lot Owner shall be
a member of the Association. Such Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be 
separated from ownership of a Lot. Every Member of the Association shall have one vote in the
Association for each Lot owned by the Member. When more than one person or entity holds an
ownership interest in a Lot, the vote shall be exercised as they themselves shall determine. So
long as Developer, or its successors and assigns, shall own one or more Lots, the authority and
functions of the Board of Directors and the Architectural Control Committee shall remain in and
be exercised solely by Developer or its successors and assigns. When Developer no longer owns
one or more Lots, Developer shall promptly select three Owners to serve on the Board of
Directors of the Association until the next annual meeting of Members or until their successors
have been duly elected. The Board of Directors shall not be entitled to any compensation for 
their services as such members. Any Member who is delinquent in the payment of charges,
assessments and special assessments charged to or levied against a Lot shall not be entitled to
vote until all of such charges and assessments have been paid. Members shall vote in person or 
by proxy executed in writing by the Member. No proxy shall be valid after six months from the 
date of its execution.







MIL-28743563-1


Section 6.8 shall be amended by deleting the strikeout language and inserting the underlined
language to read as follows:


6.8 Interest on Unpaid Assessment. Any assessment under this Article VI which is no 
paid when due shall thereafter until paid in full bear interest at the rate of Eighteen (18%) percent 
per annum or the highest interest rate permitted by law, whichever is lower.  In addition to the 
interest charges, a late charge of up to $50.00 $5.00 per day may be imposed by the Board of 
Directors against an Owner if any balance in common expenses remains unpaid more than 30 
days after payment is due. Any interest charges, late charges, costs of collection and attorneys’ 
fees incurred in collection of a past due assessment shall be included in the lien described in 
Section 6.9 below, all of which shall be secured by the lien filed against the delinquent owner’s 
Lot.







MIL-28743563-1


This First Amendment to the Declaration complies with the requirements of the Declaration at 
Article VIII, Section 8.1 in that it has been approved by 75% of the Lot owners and the Village 
of Pleasant Prairie.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lot Owners have executed this First Amendment to Declaration 
of Restrictions for Wyndemere of Pewaukee this _____ day of ___________, 2017.


MEADOWLANDS HOMEOWNER’S 
ASSOCIATION, INC., a Wisconsin Non-Stock
Corporation,


By: _______________________________
____________________, President


STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss.


COUNTY OF KENOSHA )


This document was acknowledged before me by ____, as President of Meadowlands 
Homeowner’s Association, Inc. on this ______ day of _________, 2017.


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
Name:______________________________
My Commission Expires: __________


This document was drafted by:
Lydia J. Chartre, Esq.
Husch Blackwell LLP
20800 Swenson Dr., Suite 300
Waukesha, WI 53186



















ORD. NO. 19-27 


ORDINANCE TO AMEND 


THE VILLAGE MUNICIPAL CODE (SECTIONS 234-8 A) 


RELATED TO ENFORCEMENT; ABATEMENT OF NUISANCES  


 


THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 


KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DO HEREBY ORDAIN THAT THE FOLLOWING 


MUNICIPAL CODES BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


A.  Enforcement. The Chief of Police, Fire Chief, Building Inspector and the Health 


Officer, Zoning Administrator, Code Enforcement Officer or their designees shall 


enforce those provisions of this article that come within the jurisdiction of their 


offices and they shall make periodic inspections and inspections upon complaint to 


ensure that such provisions are not violated.  The above employees are to be 


permitted access to the properties and structures during reasonable hours to make 


those inspections as deemed necessary by him or his designee to ensure compliance 


with this chapter; if; however, he or his designee is refused entry after presentation 


of identification, he or his designees may procure a special inspection warrant in 


accordance with Section 66.0119 of the Wisconsin Statutes or any subsequent 


amendment thereto and in accordance with any other applicable Wisconsin Statutes.  


No action shall be taken under this section to abate a public nuisance unless the 


officer has inspected or caused to be inspected the premises where the nuisance is 


alleged to exist and has satisfied himself that a nuisance does in fact exist. 


 


Adopted this 19th day of August, 2019. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


ATTEST:  


 


  


John P. Steinbrink 


Village President 


  


Jane C. Snell 


Village Clerk 


Posted:    


 


27-234-8 nuisances-enforcement abatement 


CODE1908-003 







MINUTES 
VILLAGE BOARD 


Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 - 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 


 
 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on August 5, 2019.  Meeting 
called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris Keckler, Mike 
Pollocoff and Mike Serpe.  Dave Klimisch was excused.  Also present were Tom Shircel, Assistant 
Village Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director; Craig Roepke, Chief of 
Fire & Rescue; Matt Fineour, Village Engineer; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; John Steinbrink Jr., 
Public Works Director; Carol Willke, Human Resources Director; and Jane C. Snell, Village Clerk.  Eight 
(8) citizens attended the meeting. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. PRESENT RESOLUTION #19-28 OF APPRECIATION AND RECOGNITION TO 


JAMES BANDURA FOR HIS YEARS OF SERVICE TO THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT 
PRAIRIE.  


 
Tom Shircel: 
 


I can read that into the record.  This is Resolution #19-28, and as the President said it’s a 
resolution of appreciation and recognition to James Bandura for years of service to the Village of 
Pleasant Prairie Plan Commission and Park Commission.  Whereas James Bandura professionally 
and attentively served the Village of Pleasant Prairie in various roles for 25 years; and Whereas 
on December 7, 1994 James Bandura was appointed to the Pleasant Prairie Plan Commission 
where he served as the Secretary of the Commission with professionalism and dedication; and 
Whereas on September 10, 2008 James Bandura was appointed to the Pleasant Prairie Park 
Commission where he served as a member with professionalism and dedication; 


 
And Whereas James provided invaluable expertise in commercial design and construction that 
proved to be very beneficial to the Village during the growth which occurred during his tenure on 
the Plan and Park Commissions; and Whereas the Village of Pleasant Prairie would like to 
acknowledge and express its gratitude to James for his contributions serving to the Plan and Park 
Commissions.  And now, therefore, let it be resolved that the Village of Pleasant Prairie does 
hereby extend its sincere appreciation and gratitude to James Bandura for his 25 years of 
commitment and attentive service to the Village of Pleasant Prairie in the cause of quality 
municipal planning.  Considered and adopted this 5th day of August, 2019. 


 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 2 
 
 


 
2 


Michael Serpe: 
 


I served with Jim the entire time he was on the Plan Commission, and he always came to the 
meetings prepared and had the right questions to ask.  And he was a valuable member of this 
Commission and a valuable member to the Village.  I’m truly going to miss Jim.  He was a great 
Plan Commission member and very dedicated to this Village.  And I wish him well.  I know he’s 
going to be moving to the Carolinas and a little bit less harsh winters that he expects to find.  So 
Jim will be missed. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


One thing about Jim was no matter what we did here at the Village he was always a volunteer 
along with his wife.  I never found more dedicated people being civically minded in helping out.  
No matter what it was, at Prairie Family Days, Historical Society, anything we did in the Village 
they were there and they were part of it.  As you said, they are going to be missed. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


John, with that I would move to adopt Resolution 19-28. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Nobody opposed?  That’s good.  See, everybody liked Jim, there was no doubt about 
it.  You’ll get that over to him, Tom? 


 
Tom Shircel: 
 


We will do that.  I think we plan on mailing it to him, correct.  Thank you. 
 
 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 3 
 
 


 


John Steinbrink: 
 


Maybe he’ll invite us down for that winter in the Carolinas to visit. 
 


SERPE MOVED FOR APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION #19-28 OF APPRECIATION AND 
RECOGNITION TO JAMES BANDURA FOR HIS YEARS OF SERVICE TO THE VILLAGE 
OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE; SECONDED BY POLLOCOFF; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
5. KENOSHA COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, MIKE GRAVELEY, PRESENTATION 


TO THE BOARD ON OPIOID CRISIS AND LAW ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE TO 
SCHOOL THREATS. 


 
Mike Graveley: 
 


Thanks so much to the Board for allowing me to come and to just sort of give a report about a 
few of the things that I think are of particular interest to Pleasant Prairie, but our projects that the 
District Attorney’s office is really focused on.  We’re spending a lot of this summer and fall 
trying to go to the municipalities just to be sure that local leadership hears a few of the sort of 
things that we’re interested in. 


 
And the primary one, the primary crisis that I think really is everywhere in the criminal justice 
system right now is the opioid heroin crisis.  Now a really strong development in that is an even 
more powerful drug called fentanyl which is 100 times more deadly, more powerful than heroin.  
And we have lost over the last five years about 50 Kenosha citizens to overdose deaths based on 
opioids.  We were just turning the corner with heroin overdoses when fentanyl began to be 
something laced in almost all of the heroin we’re now seeing coming into this county.  And so 
that has increased and brought back the numbers in terms of opioid overdoses. 


 
The problem starts with prescription pain killers.  So it’s a really insidious problem because two 
of every three new heroin addicts begin through a doctor’s legal prescription of painkillers which 
are also opioids.  So all the things from vicodin to oxycontin, all those sort of very powerful 
painkillers are exactly the same sort of substances that heroin is, have the same addictive 
properties.   


 
And what happens is as the doctors, as the medical industry is beginning to really put a lot of 
controls, appropriate controls on painkiller prescriptions of opioids, the crazy and sort of tragic 
economy of this dead crisis is that the black market supply of painkillers that you had normally 
gotten through your doctor, let’s say it takes $50 a day of black market pain pills to keep you 
from getting sick in your addiction, you can get that same amount of heroin for $10 with all the 
sort of deadly kind of ramifications that has.  So the economy of it is extremely difficult to 
combat.  And it’s the most tough form of addiction that any of us who have been in this, I’ve been 
at this 30 years, have ever seen.   


 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 4 
 
 


 
4 


And so it’s truly a crisis.  And it goes everywhere in the criminal justice system.  This year in 
Kenosha County we have twice as many children in foster care as we had five years ago.  And it’s 
a direct relation to parents struggling with addiction and not able to care for their kids.  This year 
we’re going to go from 44 cases that we filed that are termination of parental rights where parents 
have had substantially more than a year where they could not care for their kids even with 
services and supervision, usually we do about 45 of those a year, this year we’re going to file 90 
termination of parental rights.  So this crisis is one that I can tell you I’ve never seen a drug 
addiction crisis of this type in my entire lifetime in this profession. 


 
We’re using two strategies in the DA’s office to try to not leave anything, have no tool in the 
toolbox that we’re not using.  The first is we have really created Wisconsin’s first diversion 
program where we take you right out of jail, if you are a first offender, if you’ve not committed a 
crime with a victim, you haven’t burglarized someone’s house or something like that.  But if 
we’ve caught you, for instance, with heroin, we take you right out of the jail, we put you in the 
Care Center which is unlocked but a place where you can detox your body.  And then we have a 
program where we put you on an injected drug that you can inject it once a month called vivitrol 
which takes away the cravings for heroin.  So we have a scientific solution that at least has a lot 
of promise right now.  And that’s a diversion program where we will supervise you for 18 
months.  And if you succeed we will not charge you with that crime.  So you actually have a 
chance to be diverted out of the criminal justice system, never having your name on CCAP with 
all the difficulties that is for housing and employment.  So we are trying to divert first offenders 
and get them into treatment. 
 
The other thing we’re doing is we have re-doubled our efforts to punish individuals who sell 
heroin causing a fatal overdose.  So we’re partnered with law enforcement agencies all over this 
county, and we’re looking at every heroin overdose as a murder case.  And we are charging you 
with reckless homicide which is a part of the murder statute if we can show you provided the 
drugs to an individual who then died as a result.  And so we went from four of those cases two 
years ago, last year we filed 14 of those cases trying to put our dent on that fatal end of this 
spectrum.  But with all that a huge crisis.   


 
The second thing that I think really directly affects Pleasant Prairie because I’ve had an 
opportunity to partner with your Pleasant Prairie Police Department.  By the way, I want to tell 
you how complimentary I am of Chief Smetana and the Pleasant Prairie Police Force.  They’re a 
pleasure to work with, really professional dedicated group and really do a fine job.  About a year 
ago we had a case in Pleasant Prairie that began this process.  It happened at LakeView.  And it 
was a threat to the school, came over social media.  They had to decide are we going to close the 
building down, are we going to notify parents, are we going to disrupt our school situation, and 
what sort of investigation are we going to do? 


 
And I found out that there were substantial disagreements between law enforcement and the 
school and then the social services folks who would deal with the juvenile part of this, and then 
my office about which of these school threat cases should deserve the maximum resources.  







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 5 
 
 


 


Which of these should be taken most seriously?  So I convened a meeting, we had all sort of 
parties from all over the county who represented those agencies I mentioned get together.  Worst 
meeting I’ve every put together.  For those of you who have been meeting folks much of your life 
I thought we had an isolated couple of these cases.  I found out there had been more than 20 
school threats where school officials had to have those same kind of considerations, am I going to 
close the building, last academic year in Kenosha County schools. 


 
And then I found out none of us agreed sort of even about a common language on how to handle 
these cases.  So we had the Sandy Hook Institute, Sandy Hook is a community across the country 
that had a school tragedy of an active shooter case, and they have done a lot of academic research 
on this.  They’ve looked at every school shooting over the last 30 years, and they’ve boiled them 
down into which types of circumstances are the ones that deserve the most resources.  They came 
and trained for two days countywide.  Pleasant Prairie’s Police Department was actively involved 
in that as well as your school officials here in this Village.   


 
And at least now we’re speaking the same language.  And with that LakeView case we were able 
to decide exactly how to handle that and what kind of investigation to do.  Do you take the phone, 
do you take the computer, do you put that young person into custody.  And so I think we at least 
now have a battle plan.  Each time one of those happens we can sort out the ones that appear to be 
jokes or anger versus the ones that need to have a lot of diversion and resources. 


 
The last thing I want to tell you briefly is that I’ve spent a lot of time in the last year focused on 
the corporate park and trying to figure out a way to connect employers who obviously one of their 
major challenges is hiring a complete workforce and many of those folks who are in the corporate 
park, and folks who are being released from prison.  It’s my huge belief that you can really 
impact the crime rate by having individuals released from prison have real job opportunities 
where they feel like I have a future here, I have an opportunity to really thrive in this situation.   


 
And I feel a moral obligation.  If you send someone to prison, when they come out if they’ve 
done their time and paid their price you should try to be there with resources.  So there’s an 
enormous amount of people who are supervising released felons, who are vetting released felons 
for employers, who are testing released felons and who are training them.  And there’s a little bit 
of a disconnect between the employers, particularly the private employers and those agencies 
where in many cases some of our larger employers would almost have hand picked individuals 
who were getting maximum supervision.  And so we’ve done a number of resource fairs and sort 
of talks with different employers really trying to work on making sure that in this economy where 
that message is probably most well accepted that we are trying to give every opportunity for 
individuals as they try to re-enter in those situations. 


 
So those are three things we’re really focused on.  And I am really pleased that we are working on 
all those projects though there are a lot of challenges.  I’m ready to answer any questions with 
whatever time I have left, and I want to leave some cards.  Because if any of you have 
constituents who are interested or asking you questions about something going on in the criminal 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 6 
 
 


 
6 


justice system I’d be happy to be the person who would answer those questions.  I’m happy to 
answer any questions. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Mike, I appreciate the stand you’re taking on the drug problem that we have.  I don’t think there’s 
a person in this room that could say that they don’t know somebody who has a problem with 
drugs and me included.  I wish the federal government would take a little bit more of an active 
role in declaring a war on drugs.  We have fentanyl coming in from China.  The government put 
China on notice.  China said, yeah, we’ll address the problem.  They are not addressing the 
problem.  We’re losing 65,000 Americans a year.  They’re not coming back, and every year it’s 
65,000.  And how many are addicted that are just probably going to be a part of that 65,000 
number the following year.  Columbia and China if we could declare a drug war in two areas that 
would be where I would start. 


 
Mike Graveley: 
 


And now heroin, Mike, so this is -- Trustee Serpe and I have had a conversation like this in a 
prior heroin generation.  It’s now the cheapest of our illegal drugs.  It’s shocking to me, but it’s 
cheaper than cocaine because we get our heroin right from Mexico now.  So the same cartels, the 
same drug routes it’s so profitable that heroin is now cheaper than cocaine which is why the 
economics of getting off pain pills and getting into this whole deadly spiral is so tragic right now.  
So I agree with everything you said.  And if you think about prior heroin crises, you and I have 
had a couple of those back in your law enforcement days, this is by far the worst I’ve ever seen.   
And it hits everywhere.  Twin Lakes, think about a small town like Twin Lakes, had six overdose 
deaths two years ago.  There’s no place in this county that’s not impacted which is what you were 
just saying. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Just one last comment about the schools.  And I talked to Kris on this and he’s one of the 
administrators.  I firmly believe uniforming students, and I’m not talking a military uniform, 
uniforming students would help tremendously in this district.  We have gang problems.  Whether 
they want to admit it or not gang problems are in the schools.  And if you have one gang color 
going against another you’re going to have a conflict and you’re going to have a problem.  And I 
firmly believe uniforms will -- go back to Columbine, the Black Trench Coat Mafia they were 
called, those kids were ostracized from that school because of probably their appearance, maybe 
what they were wearing.  You have to wonder if that school was uniformed would that tragedy 
have ever taken place because they would be a part of the whole group.  Just like you go in the 
military, once you get your hair cut and your uniform you’re no different than anybody else 
you’re serving with.  I firmly believe that.  I know there would be a fight with the parents and the 
students to get it done, I understand that, but I think there would be a huge benefit if we followed 
through with something like that. 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 7 
 
 


 


 
Kris Keckler: 
 


I had a question.  You gave some startling statistics, and we’re obviously no different than a lot of 
communities across the nation in dealing with this, both the rise and helping the people if they’ve 
not committed any other crime or just being held for possession than obviously those that are 
dealing and the increased rise of those that could be held for a murder charge.  But you’d also 
said that two thirds come the route through prescription medication.  Has you office been 
involved in any of the pipeline from that angle either from the pharmaceuticals or from the 
medical practitioners who have kind of abused this? 


 
Mike Graveley: 
 


So the state attorney generals are the ones who can sue on behalf of the state, right?  So there’s 
been a series of lawsuits, and I think our new attorney general is now joining in that process of 
suing some of the big pharmaceutical companies.  And I have talked to our legislators now 
multiple times about cracking down on medical prescriptions on this stuff.  And that has 
dramatically changed.  So we peaked in this country in terms of pain medications with our 
prescriptions in 2012.  That year we had 231 million bottles of opiates that were prescribed in this 
country which was more than one for every adult in the whole country. 


 
We as a country are less than five percent of the world’s population, and we consume more than 
60 percent of the world’s prescription opiates.  So we created a medical culture that said to people 
you deserve when you leave a doctor’s office to be completely pain free.  We’re the first 
generation that ever thought that in the history of medicine, right?  It used to be you felt pain and 
your body was trying to tell you, hey, there’s something going on here, we probably should do -- 
now the objective of people in a medical office taught by this medical culture is that you should 
be pain free.  And there’s a cost to that.  And that’s the kind of thing you’re talking about.  That 
has begun to change.  And the doctors who have been found to be abusing that are being charged, 
and they’re usually being charged at the state level because there are state charges for that and 
some federal charges.  Remember just a few years ago there were these whole pain clinics where 
that’s all they did was prescribe opiates.  That was the whole reason those building existed. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


You mentioned you’re diverting people to the Care Center.  What’s been the success rate on those 
initial diversions? 


 
Mike Graveley: 
 


Thank you for asking that because the care center is not a locked facility, right?  And so if 
anybody knows when you get off of opiates your body has the worse flu you’ve ever had and it 
lasts for about seven days.  You don’t die from it but you think you will and it’s really tragic.  So 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 8 
 
 


 
8 


what we have found is we lose about one of every three participants in that transition period in 
about that five or six days that somebody would be at the Care Center.  So people leave that 
facility, and then we turn around and we charge them with the case so they end up getting a 
charge.  So we lose about one in three.  Once we get an ejection for someone, then our failure rate 
is less than ten percent.  It dramatically takes away your cravings which allows us then to 
followup with counseling.  We can get to the work of sort of how you got to this situation because 
the craving is over at that point.  And if you take heroin or an opiate while you have vivitrol in 
your system you will not get high so you will not get the effect. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Is there enough beds in there? 
 
Mike Graveley: 
 


So they expanded the Care Center last year.  I don’t know if any of you have been out there.  it’s 
on 60th Street.  It used to be a mortgage office. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Gateway, yeah. 
 
Mike Graveley: 
 


It’s a fabulous facility.  Really a wonderful facility.  And they expanded, I think it’s a 12 or 14 
bed facility now so they added about six beds last year.  And because of that expansion we have 
not had a time yet where we’ve not had the resources.  Prior to that expansion it was a challenge. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Good. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


All right, I’m going to switch gears on you a little bit.  Vaping has been in the news with serious 
respiratory problems.  I know if Chief Roepke has got any calls because sometimes it looks like 
the car’s on fire because there are just plumes of smoke coming out.  But it’s becoming a serious 
thing around the state.  And they didn’t list Kenosha County as one of them that had a serious 
problem with somebody.  But are there steps being taken at the county level for this? 


 
 
 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 9 
 
 


 


Mike Graveley: 
 


So I’m not aware of any county steps.  It’s a great question in terms of any -- because I do state 
law, because I enforce state law and there is not a state law against vaping, in that situation it’s 
not something I’m actively involved in enforcing.  But I’d be interested in talking to people about 
that because clearly that’s another one of those dramatic health risk situations.  So if there was 
ever some sort of a concerted county effort to talk about what to do in those areas I’d be happy to 
be a part of that. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Because right now I think they’re just trying to find a link between those that have the most 
serious problem and the product they’re using. 


 
Mike Graveley: 
 


Right, exactly. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


All right.  Other questions for Mike? 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Appreciate it, Mike. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Thank you. 
 
Mike Graveley: 
 


Thank you so much, appreciate it. 
 
6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Jane Snell: 
 


Mr. President, there were no signups this evening. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Anyone wish to speak under citizens’ comments?  Hearing none I’ll close citizens’ comments. 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 10 
 
 


 
10 


 
7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 


I have nothing to report this evening, Mr. President. 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. Consider approval of First Amendment to Development Agreement between Village 


of Pleasant Prairie and Riverview Group LLC. 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Mr. President, I am going to talk about both the first amendment as well as the collateral 
assignment to the development agreement and TID proceeds.  So if we could take both items at 
this time I’m going to be making one presentation. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


So moved. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
 SERPE MOVED TO CONSIDER NEW BUSINESS ITEMS 8A AND 8B AT THIS TIME; 
SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
 B. Consider approval of Collateral Assignment of Development Agreement and TID 


Proceeds between Riverview Group LLC and Associated Bank, National 
Association. 


 
 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 11 
 
 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, simply put the request you have before you this 
evening, the first amendment to development agreement will make it clear that in the event of a 
default by a developer under the development agreement the Village will have the right to 
complete the infrastructure, and that the Village is to be reimbursed from the tax increment from 
TID 7 prior to the developer receiving any TID 7 funds as PAGO payments under the municipal 
revenue obligation. 


 
Now, let me give you some history and then I’ll come back to that.  The developer’s lending 
institution, Association Bank, has requested a stand still of the termination rights of the Village in 
the consent to the collateral assignment required in the first amendment to the development 
agreement.  The Village is being asked to execute a consent to the collateral assignment of the 
development agreement and TID proceeds which provides Associated Bank with a collateral 
assignment of a developer’s rights under the development agreement and the municipal revenue 
obligation after it is issued. 


 
Within the consent Associated Bank has requested that if the bank needed to foreclose on the 
property to step into the shoes of the developer and comply with the developer’s obligations 
under the agreement, then the Village would not have the right to terminate the development 
agreement until the bank had a chance to complete the developer’s obligations.  This might 
require a foreclosure action against the developer, and it could take a long time for the bank to 
obtain the title to foreclose on the property.  While it’s reasonable for the bank to request this 
time to complete a foreclosure action before the Village can terminate the development 
agreement, it could put the Village in a bad situation where the developer fails to complete the 
infrastructure improvements, and the Village would be unable to service the property or adjoining 
properties by completing the infrastructure improvements itself and obtaining the reimbursement 
of the cost from the TID.   
 
So that is a long way of saying that we are making these modifications to the collateral 
assignment and also to the amendment to the development agreement in order to protect the 
Village and to make sure that if the Village wants to and needs to complete the public 
infrastructure improvements for the Stateline 94 Corporate Park development because the 
developer has failed to do so, that we will be able to do it, and we would be reimbursed first from 
the proceeds of the TID.  The staff recommends approval of both the first amendment to the 
development agreement as well as the collateral assignment to the development agreement and 
TID proceeds. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I guess I see where we’re going with this and it makes sense.  My questions relate to if the 
developer fails to live up to their obligations with the bank and the bank takes over the 
development, and we have grading left and we have some other work left to be done, one, does 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 12 
 
 


 
12 


the Village have the ability to say we’re not going to do it until we know who we’re going to do 
grading for?  We want to see what the grading plans are.  And then does this relieve the developer 
or the bank in taking the place of the developer from putting money forth -- they received funds 
from the bank I’m presuming which is a loan, and if they go under if any of those excess proceeds 
does that get called on first, or does the TID go first?  That would be my question.  If there was a 
pot of money that was developed to finance this whole improvement, assuming the bank wouldn’t 
let that money go unless that money had been backed up by some kind of improvement, they 
would have signed off on a release, there should be some money left, and that money should be 
able to be drawn on prior to the Village having to turn TID money over to them. 


 
Kathy Goessl: 
 


We have a lot of credit currently with the developer, too, so we should be able to pull from the 
letter of credit. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


So this agreement would put Associated Bank in place of the developer to release that credit, that 
letter of credit? 


 
Kathy Goessl: 
 


We would pull from the developer’s letter of credit, and then we would be able to pay or finish 
the project [inaudible] would be able to finish the project.  If Associated is not doing anything, we 
can then go in ourselves, but we’ll be the first in line for the [inaudible] payback. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Okay, so we’re number one and Associated isn’t? 
 
Kathy Goessl: 
 


We’re number one before Associated if we put forth effort to complete a road or do something. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Okay.  I don’t have any problem with it then in that scenario.  Is there something else I missed? 
 
Kathy Goessl: 
 


No, we would only come in and do public improvements.  We would not go in and do grading 
and stuff that they also had in their plan that was initially in the TID. 


 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 13 
 
 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Okay.  As long as we don’t get pushed into doing something we don’t want to do as far as 
improvements.  I mean we would want those to happen in an orderly manner irregardless of 
whether it’s the developer or Associated.  If we have that ability, and then if the letter of credit is 
there first to draw upon and the TID is not the first thing then I could support this. 


 
Kathy Goessl: 
 


We would only step in if we really had to. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Pardon? 
 
Kathy Goessl: 
 


We would only step in if we really had to and we had to finish something because maybe adjacent 
land needed it, the road completed or something like that.  We wouldn’t be grading on their site 
or that kind of stuff. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Okay.  Then, Mr. President, I would move for the First Amendment to the development 
agreement with Venture One, move approval. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries.  Item B? 
 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 14 
 
 


 
14 


Michael Serpe: 
 


Move approval of the collateral assignment of the development agreement. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Any discussion on Item B?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries.  Thank you, Jean. 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED FOR APPROVAL OF THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE AND 
RIVERVIEW GROUP LLC; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 


 
SERPE MOVED FOR APPROVAL OF THE COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND TID PROCEEDS BETWEEN RIVERVIEW GROUP LLC 
AND ASSOCIATED BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION; SECONDED BY KECKLER; 
MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
 C. Consider approval of Ordinance #19-23 as it relates to Chapter 242 pertaining to 


RecPlex Fees. 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


Elizabeth Caruso, Manager of Guest Services.  Thanks for seeing us tonight.  So we took the 
opportunity to update our Chapter in Ordinance 242.  Recently we discussed the new pass types 
and the family membership pricing.  There were some outdated policies and the definitions in the 
ordinance.  So we made these changes to make a better flow, more flexibility, along with removal 
of some redundant items. 


 
The ordinance outcomes listed rather than the operational procedures is one of the changes that 
we made.  Removal of some of the program pricing to give us real time flexibility in changes our 
pricing by session rather than annually so that we could pull on some different revenue strands 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 15 
 
 


 


more frequently if we needed to do so.  Membership pricing is now contained in the addendum 
that you see up there.  And that will continue to be contained, but the program fees have been 
removed. 


 
Resident listing, each individual rule by department, we did an overarching rule, and then each 
specific rule we listed.  Like down in the ice arena it will say no puck handling in the lobby, and 
down in the aqua arena we’ll say shoes and shirts required.  But that won’t be in the ordinance 
anymore. 


 
Basic facility wide rules will be listed with the potential penalties for noncompliance so that we 
can still reference the ordinance because it’s a valuable tool that we use as managers.  But it has 
become kind of redundant and a lot of pages.  And this reduces it down so that our managers and 
our staff can utilize the ordinance when showing what happens on the bottom line.  And then we 
can refer to specific areas if there’s any different layers like no dogs on the beach or the no shoes, 
like I said, down in the aqua arena.  It’s our hope with this new ordinance that it’s easier to 
comprehend and easier to be used.  Do you have any questions for me? 
 


Michael Serpe: 
 


Do you have a comparison on the increases in the memberships? 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


As far as when we changed our pass types? 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Yes. 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


So membership numbers are down right now, but we do have a lot of plans for the future.  So 
about a year ago we had a lot of competition -- 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


No, as far as the rates go, the rate increases -- are you asking for rate increases on this tonight? 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


No, sir, no rate increases at all. 
 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 16 
 
 


 
16 


Michael Serpe: 
 


There’s no rate increases.  So senior -- 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


Just specifically edits to the content.  So the ordinance used to be about 29 pages long, and about 
16 of those were RecPlex specific.  So we took the ordinance, we squished it down to about six 
pages.  We eliminated some of the redundant things.  We related some of the specific rules that 
were in individual areas, and we just created a more user friendly document for our management 
and our staff.  Because it used to be the blanket -- we were governed by a Village ordinance, and 
then we would point them towards this 29 page document.  Now it’s going to be more user 
friendly.  We’ll be able to say here’s what’s in the ordinance, the definition of membership types, 
the rules.  And then department specific things we’ll be able to have posted in the areas so it’s not 
cumbersome in the ordinance and then the fees.   


 
So the biggest thing we’re doing is taking the fees out of the ordinance.  And the reason why that 
is is because we don’t want to give a one stop shop for our competition to come and see the list of 
every single program we offer and exactly what we’re charging and what new programs we’re 
offering.  That’s kind of internal information, and that can be provided to you as necessary.  But it 
doesn’t need to be out there necessarily in our ordinance.  That way if we want to change 
programming midstream because we see an opportunity to pull a revenue strand.   


 
Like with Malory’s Youth Program we were able to change her fees $1 per day per child to the 
tune of about $8,000 in revenue that we found.  So if you’re paying $200 a week per child and I 
bump you up $5 in that week you’re not going to notice that change.  Whereas if you’re paying 
for a membership and I’m bumping you up $5 a month, the biggest reason why people cancel 
their memberships is because they’re not using it, and now I’m going to charge you $5 more a 
month for something you’re not using and now you’re going to cancel.  Where if I were to charge 
you $58 for basketball for one session, and the next session we can change that to $62 for the 
session nobody is going to shake their head.  But we just increased our revenue pretty 
dramatically.  That was the biggest reason for removing all of those rates out of the ordinance so 
we had some flexibility. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Every weekend we have major events out there either with the swimmers or hockey.  And we’ve 
spent an enormous amount of money in the field house with restrooms with $90,000, I don’t 
know what it was. [Inaudible] pittance.  The people that come in to watch their kids play 
volleyball or basketball or watch them swim they’re using these facilities, and it takes Tom’s 
crew to clean up afterwards and put everything back the way it was.  In some way or another are 
we capturing any of those costs either in the fees that we charge these teams to play, or should we 
look at something like charging $1 a person to come into the front door? 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 17 
 
 


 


 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


Absolutely, and that’s something that’s on our radar for sure, charging gate fees because we 
currently don’t do that.  We charge fees for the organization to rent the facility, but then the 
organization keeps the gate fees.  So that’s definitely on the radar.  We took over concessions so 
we realized about $100,000 in revenue that we weren’t realizing last year since Brett has taken 
over that department.  So we are capitalizing on that as well, opening up in the field house as well 
as in the aqua arena.  So, yeah, there are definitely things that we can do. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


And with an explanation, if we get into that, people can understand that the place has to be 
maintained, and it is maintained to perfect, it is.  And I credit Tom Patrizzi and his crew on that.  
But I think if you explained to them, just say, you know, we spend an enormous amount of 
money to make your stay here a little bit more pleasurable, and we’re asking a small amount in 
return for you to watch your kid to play, costs you a dollar.  Who is going to argue with that? 


 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


 Absolutely, I don’t think anybody And I think that goes back to the point of pulling on those 
other revenue strands besides our members because our members pay a flat fee every month.  But 
all these visitors there should be a cost, an impact fee if you will. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


It is. 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


And there are some events that do pay specific impact fees, but we’re definitely looking at that in 
the future because you’re right. 


 
Kris Keckler: 
 


You said membership is down? 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


Membership is down slightly, yes. 
 
 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 18 
 
 


 
18 


Kris Keckler: 
 


Just slightly? 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


Just slightly.  Yeah, there’s a couple reasons why that was.  So Planet Fitness opened, some 
boutique facilities opened.  We tried a couple different membership specials.  Changed our 
membership drive which as I spoke with Mike before that was a little bit of a loss leader because 
we had to reduce some of our revenue to get us to that $99 per month per family membership.  
And then the cancellation rate spiked.  But we have seen it level out.  We’re one year in from all 
the opening of those surrounding facilities.  And we feel very confident that going into the second 
half of the year with our three biggest specials that we have that we’re going to be seeing that turn 
around.  So we did a membership drive in January which is no money due until February 2 so it 
looked like we took a hit in our revenue.  But the reality is we’ll see it in 2020, it just won’t hit in 
2019.  Just trying a new special there. 


 
And then we lost about 600 memberships who cancelled and left, and the biggest reason was cost.  
Prior to that the biggest reason for cancellation was not using and moving.  And moving we can’t 
do anything about.  But not using we just created a loyalty program.  Because we saw that a year 
ago that our retention was starting to slide.  So we started bring a buddy Wednesday.  So every 
member who has been a member a year or more can bring a buddy every single Wednesday.  We 
increased our day passes based on longevity.  We started giving away more things like shaker 
bottles and lanyards and doing the spin the wheel and having member appreciation.  So we were 
capitalizing on that. 


 
So our retention rate is excellent.  People are staying.  It was just that one year when everyone left 
to go try Planet Fitness.  Burn Boot Camp was another one that was killing us.  But they’re 
coming back now because we’re not really in direct competition with Planet Fitness.  We’re a 
community rec center.  So we rebranded ourself a year ago when we saw that happening because 
we wanted to take advantage of all the programs that we offer, everything we offer that Planet 
doesn’t.  So I anticipate the next six months is going to see -- I think we’re done with our 
cancellations, and we’re just going to see the influx in the memberships after that. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


You have somebody looking at marketing alone? 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


Absolutely.  Craig and Josh and Sam just met with a marketing company who created our new 
logo.  And that was to look at how we are missing out and not capitalizing on things like 
Instagram and Twitter and all of that marketing.  Instead of spending our marketing dollars to the 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 19 
 
 


 


tune of $20,000 in newspaper and radio, is there a better way in the second half of this year that 
we can spend that money so we can capitalize on those new memberships.  So, yeah. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Good. 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


I really think successfully with Craig at the helm we have our finger on the pulse, and I’m 
confident that we’re going to see some increase. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I’ll renew my senior membership. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


There’s one thing I just want to clarify.  I mean I don’t think we’re trying to trick anybody by 
raising rates.  It’s not that we’re hiding that we’re having an increase.  We’re just making an 
increase that’s tolerable. 


 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


Thank you, that’s a much better way to put it. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I don’t want anyone to think we’re -- 
 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


No, no, I’m sorry if I came off that way.  That was definitely not what it was.  Just a more 
tolerable increase. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


The other thing I think if you look at the financials for RecPlex I think the cash position is very 
good.  For 18 years in, 19 years in it’s still never been on the tax roll.  It’s paid its way through 
the users, be it members or people that just sign up for a program or a rental where we bring some 
people in.  And I think that that’s one of the things maybe we ask Carthage or UW to help us with 
on analysis is take a look at the economic impact of RecPlex.  I don’t know how many young 
children have got their first job at RecPlex be it a lifeguard, a custodian, camp counselor, 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 20 
 
 


 
20 


childcare.  And they got their jobs at RecPlex, it’s the first jobs they’ve had where they’ve had to 
have some responsibility and do something.  And I don’t know what the number is, I think at 
some point it was like 550 individuals, granted some of those are program people, some are full 
time, but at the peak of employment period in the summer there’s a lot of people that are out 
there.  I mean there’s that aspect that’s a positive impact to the community. 


 
And the second one is just the number of tournaments.  Just last week it was a Speedo 
competition. And if you notice when I went out there this weekend there was cars from Michigan, 
from Missouri, from all over the place who were coming here and staying here for four days with 
their kids, and they were feeding them and paying for them to stay someplace at night.  And 
they’re all over the community.  They were going down to see the boats when they weren’t 
swimming.  So RecPlex plays a part in the local economy as far as how much it helps buoy that 
tourism part of the industry that’s critical to the economic growth of the area. 


 
I think the third thing that’s critical, and back when I was a working person, I remember we used 
to bring people out there.  I think it was Yamaha or Volkswagen, we were touring around the 
corporate park trying to find a place that they would like to have their building land.  And it was 
like they really weren’t warmed up to it.  And our last stop was at RecPlex, walking through 
RecPlex.  That just closed the deal.  They said this is great.  This is good for our employees.   


 
We had another business that it was a bakery, refined back goods, I forget his name, but his 
daughter was at a volleyball tournament that was from Illinois that was up at RecPlex.  He took a 
drive around the corporate park, he saw the Chicago Lock building that was for sale.  He went in 
and bought it, refurbished it, made it a special business for bakeries and he moved his business up 
here.  And then three months later he had a contaminated product and he closed down. 


 
But the key thing is that you open one door, you close one door, you open another one, that 
building now, that improvement is Good Foods.  And Good Foods is a really large employer in 
the community and they’re doing a lot of good business.  So it’s just another asset.  When we put 
our best foot forward and try to find good companies to come here and employ people and pay 
taxes it’s one of the tools we use.  And those people, those employees end up being members. 


 
So even though we’re down memberships I think when you look at the whole picture, and I think 
the bottom line in cash reflects that.  There’s a lot of things going on that affect the bottom line at 
RecPlex, but I think your rate adjustments are a good move and good procedure, and I think we 
just stick to the program the way it is.  I’d move that we approve the ordinance amendment as 
presented for 242. 


 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 21 
 
 


 


John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  And they were from all over the Midwest.  There 
were two large buses from Ohio and other states. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


It was weird, some of our kids that same weekend were off at other -- I mean the older kids were 
competing in national tournaments in other places.  So it gives the youth here the opportunity to 
compete at a higher level. 


 
Elizabeth Caruso: 
 


And when you walk around the lobby and all those folks are out there and they see you have your 
RecPlex gear on they’ll be like this place is amazing.  There’s no place like this anywhere.  We 
swim all over the place, and we don’t see a place like this anywhere else. So you kind of forget 
when you’re in it every day how cool it really is.  So it’s good to hear that from all the people 
who visit us. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Were you at the Speedo thing modeling? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I had my Speedo, and I was handing out complimentary sunglasses to shade your eyes. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second, no further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries.  Thank you. 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED FOR APPROVAL ORDINANCE #19-23 AS IT RELATES TO 
CHAPTER 242 PERTAINING TO RECPLEX FEES; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION 
CARRIED 4-0. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – August 5, 2019 
Page | 22 
 
 


 
22 


9. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 1) Consider approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement regarding State Highway 


50 with City of Kenosha and Wisconsin Department of Transportation. 
 2) Consider approval of The Cottages at Village Green Letter of Credit Reduction, 


Phase 1, Request No. 7. 
 3) Consider approval of The Cottages at Village Green Letter of Credit Reduction, 


Phase 2, Request No. 5. 
 4) Minutes of Meeting - July 15, 2019 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I would move approval of Consent Agenda Items 1 and 2. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


No, there’s two more. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


There’s 3 and 4. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


And the next page, 3 and 4. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page | 23 
 
 


 


SERPE MOVED FOR APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1, 2, 3, AND 4; 
SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
10. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Move we adjourn. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second for adjournment.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED TO AJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY SERPE; 
MOTION CARRIED 4-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:45 P.M. 







MEMORANDUM 


To:        Village President and Board of Trustees 


From:   Nathan R. Thiel 


Date:    August 15, 2019 


Re:        Various Boards/Commissions Appointments 


9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6721 • Fax 262.694.4734 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 


Office of the Village Administrator 


I hereby recommend the following: 


Community Development Authority reappointment of members for the term of August 4, 2019 to August 3, 2020: 


 John Steinbrink, Chairperson


 Michael Serpe, Member


 Dustin Decker, Alternate Member


Zoning Board of Appeals existing member appointed to Chairperson for the remainder of his current term which is May 


1, 2017 to April 30, 2020: 


 Mark Riley





		August 19, 2019 Village Board Agenda

		4A. Public Hearing - Kwik Trip #296 Liquor License Request

		4B.  Vista at Creekside Old Green Bay Road Water Main Extension Final Assessment

		Vista at Creekside Old Green Bay Road Water Main Extension Final Assessment Packet

		Special Assessment Report - Vista at Creekside Old Green Bay Road Public Water Main

		Schedule A - Final Plans Vista at Creekside Old Green Bay Road Public Water Main

		Schedule B - Cost of Improvements / Assessment Method & Rate Calculation - Vista at Creekside Old Green Bay Road Public Water Main 

		Schedule B, page 2 - Cost Estimate - Vista at Creekside Old Green Bay Road Water Main Extension

		Schedule C - Right of Recovery / Assessment Schedule - Vista at Creekside Old Green Bay Road Public Water Main

		Map - Vista at Creekside Old Green Bay Road Public Water Main



		Final Resolution #19-27 Old Green Bay Road Water Main Extension 



		7A.  Keystone Condo-Conceptual Plan

		MOU STH 165 Improvements

		2019-07-18 Eng Review Comments

		Delaration Comments

		Conceptual Application and partial Plans

		Application form

		Partial Plans

		2018-09-06 DNR Artificial Wetland Exemption

		2018-09-25 ACOE Jurisdictional Determination





		7B.  Ord 19-24 Ord 19-25 and Ord 19-26 to Amend Zoning Ordinances

		Ord 19-24

		Ord 19-25

		Ord 19-26



		7C. Right of Recovery and Funding Agreement - Bear Development, LLC and VOPP

		7D.  3rd Amendment to Declaration Meadowlands Subdivision

		Third Amendment

		Request



		7E. Ord 19-27 to Amend Section 234-8 Enforcement for Abatement of nuisances

		8. Consent Agenda - August 5, 2019 Village Board Minutes

		8. Consent Agenda - Reappointment of various members to Boards-Commissions








